

Mono County Housing Element



6th Cycle Update

Mono County Community

Development Department

Adopted November 5, 2019

2019-2027

Table of Contents

Introduction	1
Statutory Requirements	1
Community Outreach	1
Consistency with General Plan	
SECTION 1 Goals and Policies	5
Goal 1: Increase Overall Housing Supply	6
Goal 2: Increase the Supply of Community Housing	11
Goal 3: Retain Existing Community HousingError! Bookmark n	ot defined.
Goal 4: Ensure All Other Needs Related to Housing are Met	17
SECTION 2 Technical Appendix	
Demographics and Housing Characteristics	
Primary Data Sources	21
Population Growth	
Ethnicity	
Age	
Household Size	
Household Tenure	
Overcrowded Households	
Extremely Low Income Households	
Overpaying Households	
Employment	
Income	
Persons with Disabilities	
Elderly	
Farmworkers	
Female Headed Households	
Emergency Shelter Needs	40
Housing Types	
Housing Stock Conditions	
Needs Assessment	46

Overview	
RHNA	49
Buildout	50
Community Profiles	52
Antelope Valley	54
Bridgeport Valley	56
Mono Basin	61
June Lake	64
Long Valley	
Wheeler Cres	
Tri-Valley	
Site Inventory	
Identified Parcels	
Infrastructure	
Redevelopment Sites	85
Sites and Zoning that Facilitate Housing for Farmworkers	85
Constraints	86
Non-Governmental Constraints	86
Physical and Environmental Constraints	86
Economic Constraints	88
Governmental Constraints	88
Permitted Uses on Residential Land	88
Density	
Land Use Requirements Imposed by Other Agencies	
Lack of Subsidies for Rural Projects	
Codes and Enforcement	
Fees and Exactions	
Processing	
Persons with Disabilities	
Definition of a Family	
SECTION 3 Progress Report for 2014 Goals	

Introduction

Statutory Requirements

In response to California's critical housing needs, the Legislature enacted housing element law with the goal of providing adequate and safe housing for every Californian. The attainment of housing for all requires the cooperation of local and state governments. Housing element law requires local governments to adequately plan to meet their existing and projected housing needs, including their share of the regional housing need. The law recognizes that critical decisions regarding housing development occur at the local level within the context of the General Plan. For the private sector to adequately address housing needs and demand, local governments must adopt land use plans and regulatory schemes that provide opportunities for, and do not unduly constrain, housing development for all income groups.

Unlike the other mandatory elements of the General Plan, the Housing Element is subject to detailed statutory requirements regarding its content and must be updated on a scheduled basis. The most recent cycle was five years, with the last update occurring in 2014. Mono County is now on an eight-year cycle that corresponds with the Regional Transportation Plan updates, meaning this document applies until 2027.

The 2019 Mono County Housing Element is broken into three primary sections:

- 1. Goals and Policies Identification of goals to promote adequate housing and the policies targeted at reaching them.
- Technical Appendix A detailed analysis of conditions in the County related to housing that lead to the creation of Section 1's goals and policies. The Technical Appendix includes a needs assessment, demographic context, site inventory, community-specific profiles, constraints, and identified special needs groups.
- 3. Progress Report A summary of programs from the 2014 Housing Element Update and how those programs are modified for the current update.

Community Outreach

The 2019 Housing Element was established through an extensive public participation process. The Housing Needs Assessment began the outreach process with a comprehensive survey of residents in 2016-2017. Following the Needs Assessment, in 2018 community development staff conducted workshops with each of the County's Regional Planning Advisory Committees (RPACs) in Antelope Valley, Bridgeport Valley, Mono Basin, June Lake, Long Valley, and Tri Valley to develop a set of strategies aimed at improving housing. Insight gathered from the RPACs reflected the County's diverse needs, from a strong interest in short-term rental regulations in June Lake to a greater focus on improving existing stock in Antelope Valley and Bridgeport. The collection of strategies was organized into a "housing toolbox".

The housing toolbox was refined by County staff with assistance from Economic Planning Systems, Inc., a consultant with extensive knowledge on housing policies and actions available to communities in California. A workshop on the refined toolbox was presented at the September 20 Mono County Planning Commission meeting and as a workshop at the September 28 Board of Supervisors meeting. The September 28 meeting allowed Board members to prioritize toolbox items and give direction to Community Development staff on the programs to pursue as part of the Housing Element update. The results from the workshop are as follows:

Strong Priority. At least three Board members supported the program as a top priority. These programs are listed as a "Board priority" in Section 1, Goals and Policies.

- Update opportunity site database
- Support regulatory changes that improve housing production potential
- Reduce barriers to tiny home construction
- Allocate additional resources to bolster staff capacity to review applications
- Identify additional opportunities for CEQA streamlining
- Pursue Partnerships with other agencies, such as the Town of Mammoth Lakes
- Bolster the rehabilitation loan program, in collaboration with the Town of Mammoth Lakes
- Consider programs that improve housing stock quality
- Identify opportunities to bolster the County's revolving loan fund

Programs with mixed support. One or two Board members indicated the program as a top priority.

- Evaluate if off-site infrastructure investment can improve development readiness
- Evaluate the feasibility of creating a housing land trust
- Reinstate the Housing Mitigation Ordinance, including inclusionary requirements
- Purchase housing units at market rate, deed restrict, and then sell
- Review current use and long-term needs for County-owned parcels
- Identify zoning requirements for which more flexible approaches could incentivize more on-site affordable units
- Investigate potential for developer partnerships
- Review the language of deed restricting conditions to minimize unintended consequences
- Partner with other agencies and employers to ensure new employee housing qualifies toward meeting RHNA targets

Not a priority. The program was not indicated as a priority by any Board member.

- Reduce barriers to accessory dwelling unit construction
- Identify opportunities for land banking
- Allow waivers or discounts of planning or development impact fees for affordable projects/units

- Conduct a study to evaluate the impact of short-term rentals in the County
- Consider further enhancing policy and enforcement of short term rentals
- Educate realtors about the short-term rental approval process
- Establish a tax deferral program for affordable units
- Investigate potential for landlord partnerships

A first draft of the update was then taken to the RPACs in February 2019 for review. Comments received from the committees was incorporated into the March draft submittal to HCD. Consultation with local tribes was also initiated in March through the mandated SB 18 process.

A revised draft that integrated comments from HCD was presented to the Planning Commission in July. Suggestions from the committees and the public were included in a final version presented to the Board of Supervisors in August.

Throughout the process, from the Housing Needs Assessment to development of the toolbox and review of the draft Housing Element, a total of 22 meetings were held with communities through the RPACs for input, and eight workshops were conducted with the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors for direction.

Consistency with General Plan

The County's General Plan serves as a comprehensive, long-range plan for development, and is comprised of the Land Use Element, Circulation Element, Conservation-Open Space Element, Safety Element, Noise Element, and the Housing Element. The location of housing is determined primarily by policies contained in the Land Use Element, which establish the distribution of various land uses throughout the County. The Land Use Element specifies the allowed types of housing for each residential General Plan designation, as well as the maximum allowed density.

In conformance with state law, the Mono County General Plan has been written to be internally consistent the goals, objective, and policies in other elements. The 2019 Housing Element Update was reviewed for consistency with the Land Use Element to determine if adequate sites are provided to allow for housing for all economic segments of the community. Review of the recently adopted Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan and the anticipated 2019 Safety Element update ensured internal consistency with the Housing Element. The Land Use Inventory shows that Mono County has adequate acreage to accommodate the housing needs projected by HCD in the Regional Housing Needs Plan prepared for the County.

The Housing Element was also reviewed for consistency with the Circulation and Conservation/Open Space Elements of the General Plan. In Mono County, the circulation system is well established, and there is little traffic congestion. When congestion does occur, it is not the result of residents' commuting, but of recreational traffic at peak use periods or special events, combined with local use. Although the existing circulation system is generally adequate to provide for additional housing, the Circulation Element provides for improvements to the local transportation system that will allow for the continued development of housing.

Since 94 percent of the land in Mono County is publicly owned, and 90 percent is federally owned, much of Mono County remains open space. As a result, the provision of open space as a part of developed residential areas is not a concern in the County. Policies in both the Conservation/Open Space Element and the Land Use Element focus future development in and adjacent to existing community areas, providing additional open-space protection.

General Plan consistency for all elements, including the Housing Element, will be maintained through required annual progress reports that address comments and issues identified through the County's ongoing public participation processes, such as Regional Planning Advisory Committee (RPAC) meetings.

SECTION 1 | Goals and Policies

Section 1 of the document outlines the County's housing programs. The programs are divided based on the identified goals for addressing housing:

Goal 1: Increase Overall Housing Supply, Consistent with County's Rural Character

Programs targeted at producing more units, irrespective of income level. Mono County has a lack of overall supply and supports the creation of all residential projects that provide housing within the context of community plans. Programs are primarily targeted at identifying appropriate sites and removing constraints that slow or limit development.

Goal 2: Increase the Supply of Community Housing

Community housing refers to all housing that meets the needs of long-term residents over a range of income levels. Programs within Goal 2 are intended to increase the supply of adequate and affordable housing through a diverse set of strategies.

Goal 3: Retain Existing Community Housing

The County has identified the need to retain existing housing. Programs are targeted at maintaining and improving existing stock through rehabilitation and discouraging the conversion of long-term housing to short-term rentals.

Goal 4: Ensure All Other Needs Related to Housing are Met

The County has identified programs outside the scope of the first three goals. Programs include providing equal opportunity for all residents, identifying hazards, and maintaining the character of land uses.

Programs were synthesized through a combination of strategies taken from the previous Housing Element Update that remain relevant and priorities that emerged from the Housing Toolbox. The programs from the 2014 Update that were not eliminated (see: Section 3 – Progress Report) are captured, along with programs that emerged from the Toolbox process as a priority that were not covered by the previous update.

Each program is required to meet one of the following objectives set forth by state law:

- 1. Identify adequate sites for a range of housing opportunities;
- 2. Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing;
- 3. Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs;
- 4. Conserve and improve the condition of housing; and
- 5. Promote housing opportunities for all persons.

Goal 1: Increase Overall Housing Supply, Consistent with County's Rural Character

1.1 Update opportunity site database and identify sites within or adjacent to existing communities suitable for development targeted at addressing housing needs in the County.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:2, 1:4

Objective: Identify adequate sites for a range of housing opportunities.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Update database at least once per housing cycle. Opportunity sites are most recently identified through this Housing Element Update.

*Board priority.

- **1.2** Adopt at least one regulatory change that improves housing production potential. Potential development standards that could be revised to provide for greater regulatory flexibility that promotes housing development opportunities include:
 - Minimum lot sizes;
 - Snow storage; and
 - Establishing performance criteria that can be used in place of inflexible standards.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 3:1

Objective: Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, identification of viable regulatory changes, development application (for implementation)

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Adopt by 2023; implement changes (if adopted) through at least one project during cycle

*Board priority

1.3 Reduce barriers to tiny home construction and new housing types. Create a definition for tiny homes consistent with California Building Code and evaluate land use designations and sites appropriate for tiny home development. Redesignate at least one parcel to be eligible for tiny home development under current standards.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None.

Objective: Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

Resources Needed: California Building Code update to provide standards for tiny homes, reclassification from motor vehicle to real property at state level, General Plan Amendment application by willing landowner

Responsible Agencies: CDD, State

Timeframe: Redesignate by 2023

*Board priority.

1.4 Identify future opportunities for CEQA streamlining, including using exemptions when possible.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None.

Objective: Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

*Board priority.

1.5 Identify sites within or adjacent to existing communities where infrastructure limits development potential. Participate in the preparation of at least two grant applications by invitation of the infrastructure entities and assist those entities with understanding environmental regulations.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:5, 1:6, 1:7, 1:18

Objective: Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

- Resources Needed: Viable grant opportunities, partnership with infrastructure entity
- Responsible Agencies: CDD (grant application by invitation only), Public Utility Districts, Mutual Water Companies, SCE, BLM, USFS, LADWP, Housing Authority

Timeframe: Ongoing

1.6 Monitor the requirement for complexes with four units to be approved through a conditional use permit and if it is a constraint on development. Complexes with up to three units are currently a permitted use by-right in multi-family land use designations.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None

Objective: Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Evaluate by 2023. mitigate constraints within 24 months of evaluation.

1.7 Determine viability feasibility and value of creating a housing land trust in order to facilitate acquisition of housing and land for affordable housing developments.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 2:12

Objective: Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

Resources Needed: Additional staffing and partnership with outside agency, funding.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Housing Authority, external partners

Timeframe: Evaluate and, if viable, establish during current housing cycle (2019-2027).

1.8 Consistent with the Land Use Element, continue to require specific plans for large-scale development within community expansion areas. Specific plans allow for a variety of development and can streamline the development process. Approve at least one specific plan during the Housing Cycle.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:12

Objective: Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, development application

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing, as development is proposed.

1.9 Continue to allow for residential development in the commercial land use designation and approve at least one mixed-use development to more efficiently and economically utilize the county's limited land base for housing.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:19, 1:20

Objective: Identify adequate sites for a range of housing opportunities.

Resources Needed: Development application

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing, as development is proposed

1.10 Establish and adopt minimum allowable densities or increased densities in appropriate community areas or specific plans.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:22, 1:23

Objective: Identify adequate sites for a range of housing opportunities.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, identification of appropriate areas for increased densities.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Adopt by 2027.

1.11 Approve at least five accessory dwelling units (ADUs) used for long-term housing in single-family residential areas during the cycle as provided by Chapter 16 of the Mono County Land Development Regulations. Update ADU ordinances to reflect state law within one year of adoption.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 2:3

Objective: Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

Resources Needed: Development applications.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Evaluate ordinances bi-annually and update ordinances within one year of state law changes.

1.12 Pursue at least one grant to improve infrastructure on identified opportunity sites. Seek to combine grant proposals with the Local Transportation Commission (LTC) when appropriate.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None

Objective: Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

Resources Needed: Potential partnership with outside agency, landowner interest, funding.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, LTC, Local Utilities

Timeframe: Ongoing and as development is proposed.

Goal 2: Increase the Supply of Community Housing

2.1 Pursue partnerships with other agencies in the County, such as the Town of Mammoth Lakes, federal, state, and local agencies to identify opportunities to increase housing stock.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing;

Resources Needed: Use current staffing to facilitate partnerships.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Town of Mammoth Lakes, other agencies

Timeframe: Pursue partnerships on a biannual basis.

*Board priority

2.2 Review current use and long-term needs of County-owned parcels and evaluate for disposition or development for potential housing sites.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:4

Objective: Identify adequate sites for a range of housing opportunities.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, viable parcels for disposition or development.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Public Works, CAO

Timeframe: Evaluate by 2022, initiate disposition or development by 2027

2.3 Reinstate the Housing Mitigation Ordinance.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 2:1, 2:9, 2:10, 2:14

Objective: Identify adequate sites for a range of housing opportunities.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, Board approval.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Finance

Timeframe: Bring for Board approval by December of 2019 and every six months thereafter until adopted or rescinded.

2.4 Establish a policy on the County's participation in the purchase of housing units at market rate and deed restricting to an affordable income level. Purchase and deed restrict one unit.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 2:9, 2:12, 6.1

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Funding, outside agency that can manage deed restrictions, funding

Responsible Agencies: Mammoth Lakes Housing or other entity that can manage deed restrictions (i.e. Housing Authority).

Timeframe: Establish policy by December 2020. If approved, participate in a deed restriction by 2027.

2.5 Identify zoning requirements for which more flexible approaches could incentivize more on-site affordable units.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:21, 1:26, 3:1

Objectives: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing; Address constraints to meeting the County's housing needs.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Identify and adopt by 2027

2.6 Partner with other agencies and employers to ensure that at least one employee housing project qualifies.toward meeting the County's RHNA targets (e.g. consider waiving building permit fees).

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Requires additional staff and participation from outside parties, funding.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, employers, developers, Housing Authority

Timeframe: Evaluate during current housing cycle (2019-2027)

2.7 Develop partnerships to encourage the development of at least one housing project for very low, low, and moderate-income households.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 2:13

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Additional staff and development partner.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, employers, developers, Housing Authority

Timeframe: Establish partnership and develop one project by 2027.

2.8 Through the CPT Land Tenure Subcommittee, support land exchanges of existing seasonal housing units on public lands into private ownership so at least one unit becomes available for local year-round housing.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:1

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing and participation from outside parties (land exchange participant)

Responsible Agencies: CPT Land Tenure Subcommittee, CDD, external agencies

Timeframe: As proposed by leaseholders that have appropriate land to trade with a public land manager.

2.9 Award at least one density bonus for a qualifying project consistent with state law. Update density bonus regulations regularly to reflect changes in state law.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 2:1

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Development application.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, BOS

Timeframe: Award at least one density bonus by 2022. Update regulations within one year of adoption of new state law.

2.10 The Board of Supervisors may reduce or waive development processing fees for qualifying extremely low, low- and moderate-income housing units in order to facilitate processing. Staff will work with applicable agencies to promote a reduction or waiving of fees for such projects.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:1

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, participation from outside parties, and a qualifying application

Responsible Agencies: CPT Land Tenure Subcommittee, CDD, external agencies

Timeframe: Ongoing

2.11 Allow manufactured homes and accessory dwelling units (ADUs) in the same manner and land use designations as stick-built single family homes, and allow accessory dwelling units (ADUs), regardless of zoning and development standards, in any zone with an existing single-family home, consistent with state law (Government Code §65852.3).

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None.

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD staff

Timeframe: Approve by the end of 2019.

2.12 Allow single room occupancy dwellings in all land use designations that allow for hotels, condominiums, and similar uses, consistent with California Building Code.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None.

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD staff

Timeframe: Adopt General Plan Amendment for single room occupancy dwellings by 2022.

Goal 3: Retain Existing Community Housing

3.1 Support programs that may improve housing stock quality. Continue outreach through the County website and information counters that provide information to community members about weatherization and energy efficiency strategies and funding/waivers. Pursue at least one rehabilitation grant. Update housing stock survey at least once per housing cycle.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 4:1, 4:2, 4:3, 4:4

Objective: Conserve and improve the condition of housing.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing and partnerships with outside parties. Additional funding may be needed.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Finance, Housing Authority, outside agencies

Timeframe: Ongoing

*Board priority

3.2 Bolster the County's Revolving Loan Fund for the purchase and deed restriction of at least one unit.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 2:6

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Additional funding, deed restricted units for sale in the unincorporated county, partner to manage deed restrictions

Responsible Agencies: Finance Department, Housing Authority, Mammoth Lakes Housing

Timeframe: Explore opportunities by 2022.

*Board priority

3.3 Fund the rehabilitation loan program, potentially in collaboration with the Town of Mammoth Lakes, to rehabilitate at least five units during the cycle.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 4:5, 4:6, 4:7

Objective: Conserve and improve the condition of housing.

- Resources Needed: Additional funding, partnership with Town of Mammoth Lakes, homeowner applications.
- Responsible Agencies: Finance Department, Town of Mammoth Lakes, Housing Authority

Timeframe: Evaluate by 2023.

*Board priority

3.4 Establish a program to minimize unintended consequences of the acquisition and resale of deed restriction units, including concerns regarding long-term costs of monitoring.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through additional staff or partnership with Mammoth Lakes Housing, funding

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Finance Department, Mammoth Lakes Housing

Timeframe: Evaluate by 2022.

3.5 Identify incentives for property owners to convert short-term rentals into long-term rentals, invite all short-term rental property owners to participate, and convert at least one unit.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 6:4

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, willing property owners, adequate incentives

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Housing Authority

Timeframe: Establish incentives by 2023, convert unit by 2027.

3.6 Permit conversion and rehabilitation efforts of at least one development not typically used for long-term housing (i.e. garages or unconditioned space).

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None.

Objective: Assist in the development of adequate and affordable housing.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, development application

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Housing Authority, Finance Department

Timeframe: Permit conversion by 2023.

Goal 4: Ensure All Other Needs Related to Housing are Met

4.1 Continue development credit programs in agricultural valleys such as Bridgeport and Hammil that promote the retention of large agricultural parcels for farming purposes by requiring clustered residential development on smaller parcels.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:24

Objective: Identify adequate sites for a range of housing opportunities.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, development application

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

4.2 Disseminate and maintain fair housing information and education materials throughout the county and ensure public awareness of fair housing laws and processes. Refer persons with complaints of housing discrimination to appropriate online resources including information/links hosted on the Housing Authority website. Continue to make accommodations for persons with disabilities through the permitting process.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 5:1, 5:2

Objective: Promote housing opportunities for all persons.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

4.3 Monitor the need for permanent emergency shelters beyond the County's community centers and make emergency shelters an outright permitted use in Public Facility (PF) land use designations, as consistent with state law.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:8, 1:27

Objective: Identify adequate sites for a range of housing opportunities. Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing. Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Monitoring ongoing, modification to PF by Dec. 2019

4.4 Ensure the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan remains up to date.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:9

Objective: Identify adequate sites for a range of housing opportunities.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, re-occurring funding

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Office of Emergency Services

Timeframe: 2019, 2024 (plan is reviewed and updated on a five-year cycle)

4.5 Provide at least one short-term housing unit for homeless persons and monitor the need to increase services for homeless persons, including shortterm housing for victims of domestic violence.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: 1:10

Objective: Promote housing opportunities for all persons.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing, partnerships to manage program, housing unit, funding

Responsible Agencies: IMACA, Social Services, Wild Iris

Timeframe: Provide housing unit by 2027.

4.6 Allow transitional and supportive housing as a residential use of property, subject only to those restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings of the same type in the same zone, consistent with state law (Government Code §65583(a)(4)(A)).

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None

Objective: Promote housing opportunities for all persons.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD staff.

Timeframe: Modify General Plan Designations by December 2019.

4.7 Provide for at least one rental-assisted facility for senior residents.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None

Objective: Promote housing opportunities for all persons.

Resources Needed: Development application.

Responsible Agencies: CDD staff - responsible for processing only.

Timeframe: Process as development is proposed by 2027.

4.8 Provide for at least one intermediate care facility/developmentally disabled habilitative or intermediate care facility/developmentally disable—nursing or congregate living health facility pursuant to HSC §1267.8, §1267.9, §1267.16,

and any other applicable statues, and amend the General Plan to comply with state statutes.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None

Objective: Promote housing opportunities for all persons.

Resources Needed: Development application.

Responsible Agencies: CDD staff - responsible for general plan amendment only.

Timeframe: General Plan Amendment by 2021, process applications as development is proposed by 2027.

4.9 Adopt a reasonable accommodation procedure that provides persons with disabilities exception in land use and zoning laws. The process will not require a CUP or variance and will not be limited to accessibility improvements. The process and procedures will be posted on the County's website and materials made available at all public counters.

Related Programs from 2014 Housing Element Update: None

Objective: Promote housing opportunities for all persons.

Resources Needed: Accomplished through current staffing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Adopt a procedure by December 31, 2020; Post materials on website by April 1, 2021

Note: The County's primary role is to reduce barriers and promote the production of housing units. The County relies on the private market to generate and build projects. Timeframes presented are reliant on a number of factors outside the influence of the County, including economic growth.

SECTION 2 | Technical Appendix

Demographics and Housing Characteristics

Primary Data Sources

Data for the Technical Appendix was primarily transmitted from the following sources:

- 1. <u>2010 United States Census</u>. The most recent Census provides accurate and up-to-date information for communities in Mono County. The Census is used when trying to capture data on a community ("CDP") level. A Census Designated Place (CDP) is a concentration of population identified by the Census Bureau for statistical purposes. Ninety percent of the population in the unincorporated county lives within one of the 15 CDPs identified in Mono County and therefore the CDP has replaced the use of census tracts/blocks for general demographic analysis.
- 2. <u>2017 American Community Survey (ACS)</u>. ACS is used when presenting data on a countywide level. Due to the small population size of the county's communities, there is currently a large amount of error in the ACS data on a CDP level. Therefore, Census data is still used to provide accurate data on individual communities.
- 3. <u>2017 Mono County Housing Needs Assessment</u>. A report published by BBC, Research & Consulting that details existing needs and conditions related to housing in Mono County.

Population Growth

Population in the County has slowed after a period of robust and steady growth from the 1970s to the 1990s. This growth has slowed even more dramatically in the unincorporated County as the Town of Mammoth Lakes continues to gain a greater proportion of County's population (Figure 1). Annual growth in the unincorporated County from 2011 to 2017 is approximately half of the rate seen in the previous decade (Table 1).



Source: US Census





Source: US Census

Table 1:	Table 1: Population Trend, Unincorporated County							
Year	Population	% Change	Annual %					
1980	4460	-	_					
1990	5171	15.9	1.59					
2000	5759	11.4	1.14					
2010	5968	3.5	0.35					
2017	6036	1.1	0.16					

Source: US Census, 2017 American Community Survey

Table 2: Population by CDP, 2010							
	Total Population	% of Countywide Population	% of Unincorporated County	% of CDP Population			
Countywide	14,202	100.0%					
Mammoth Lakes	8,234	58.0%					
Unincorporated County	5,968	42.0%	100.0%				
Mono County CDPs							
Crowley Lake	875	6.2%	14.7%	16.4%			
Walker	721	5.1%	12.1%	13.5%			
Chalfant	651	4.6%	10.9%	12.2%			
June Lake	629	4.4%	10.5%	11.8%			
Bridgeport	575	4.0%	9.6%	10.8%			
Coleville	495	3.5%	8.3%	9.3%			
Benton	280	2.0%	4.7%	5.3%			
Lee Vining	222	1.6%	3.7%	4.2%			
Swall Meadows	220	1.5%	3.7%	4.1%			
Sunny Slopes	182	1.3%	3.0%	3.4%			
Mono City	172	1.2%	2.9%	3.2%			
Paradise	153	1.1%	2.6%	2.9%			
Aspen Springs	65	0.5%	1.1%	1.2%			
Topaz	50	0.4%	0.8%	0.9%			
McGee Creek	41	0.3%	0.7%	0.8%			
Total of CDPs	5,331	37.5%	89.3%	100.0%			
Unincorporated County Outside CDPs	637	4.5%	10.7%				

Ethnicity

Table 3: Population of Mono County 2010, by Race									
	Total Population	White, Not Hispanic	Hispanic	American Indian	Asian	Black	Pacific Islander	Other	2 or More Races
Countywide	14,202	9,687	3,762	239	191	42	11	33	237
Mammoth Lakes	8,234	5,143	2,772	32	128	29	5	13	112
Unincorporated County	5,968	4,544	990	207	63	13	6	20	125
Mono County CDPs									
Chalfant	651	552	67	8	5	0	0	3	16
Benton	280	188	38	49	1	0	0	0	4
Paradise	153	121	14	1	6	0	0	5	6
Swall Meadows	220	196	6	2	5	0	0	2	9
Sunny Slopes	182	158	3	2	7	0	4	0	8
Aspen Springs	65	61	1	0	2	0	0	0	1
Crowley Lake	875	706	128	5	11	3	0	5	17
McGee Creek	41	39	2	0	0	0	0	0	0
June Lake	629	476	137	6	2	0	0	0	8
Lee Vining	222	107	96	17	0	0	0	2	0
Mono City	172	128	37	1	2	0	0	0	4
Bridgeport	575	370	148	40	1	1	0	1	14
Walker	721	581	70	50	3	3	1	0	13
Coleville	495	347	110	10	8	4	0	2	14
Topaz	50	25	24	1	0	0	0	0	0
Total of CDPs	5,331	4,055	881	192	53	11	5	20	114

Table 4: Total Population Percentage by Race, CDP, Mono County 2010								
	% White	% Hispanic	% Amer Indian	% Asian	% Black	% Pacific Islander	% Other	% 2 or More Races
Countywide	68.2%	26.5%	1.7%	1.3%	0.3%	0.1%	0.2%	1.7%
Mammoth Lakes	62.5%	33.7%	0.4%	1.6%	0.4%	0.1%	0.2%	1.4%
Unincorporated County	76.1%	16.6%	3.5%	1.1%	0.2%	0.1%	0.3%	2.1%
Mono County CDF	P_{S}							
Chalfant	84.8%	10.3%	1.2%	0.8%	0.0%	0.0%	0.5%	2.5%
Benton	67.1%	13.6%	17.5%	0.4%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	1.4%
Paradise	79.1%	9.2%	0.7%	3.9%	0.0%	0.0%	3.3%	3.9%
Swall Meadows	89.1%	2.7%	0.9%	2.3%	0.0%	0.0%	0.9%	4.1%
Sunny Slopes	86.8%	1.6%	1.1%	3.8%	0.0%	2.2%	0.0%	4.4%
Aspen Springs	93.8%	1.5%	0.0%	3.1%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	1.5%
Crowley Lake	80.7%	14.6%	0.6%	1.3%	0.3%	0.0%	0.6%	1.9%
McGee Creek	95.1%	4.9%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
June Lake	75.7%	21.8%	1.0%	0.3%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	1.3%
Lee Vining	48.2%	43.2%	7.7%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.9%	0.0%
Mono City	74.4%	21.5%	0.6%	1.2%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	2.3%
Bridgeport	64.3%	25.7%	7.0%	0.2%	0.2%	0.0%	0.2%	2.4%
Walker	80.6%	9.7%	6.9%	0.4%	0.4%	0.1%	0.0%	1.8%
Coleville	70.1%	22.2%	2.0%	1.6%	0.8%	0.0%	0.4%	2.8%
Topaz	50.0%	48.0%	2.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
Total of CDPs	76.1%	16.5%	3.6%	1.0%	0.2%	0.1%	0.4%	2.1%
CDPs + Town	67.8%	26.9%	1.7%	1.3%	0.3%	0.1%	0.2%	1.7%
County - CDPs & Town Source: US Census	76.8%	17.1%	2.4%	1.6%	0.3%	0.2%	0.0%	1.7%

The percentage of the population identifying themselves as Hispanic or Latino, of whatever race, increased in the unincorporated area, rising from 12.4% of the population in 2000 to 16.6% of the population in 2010 (Table 3 & 4), a numerical increase of 291 persons, from 699 in 2000 to 990 in 2010. During this same period, the Hispanic/Latino population in Mammoth Lakes increased from 22.2% of the town's population in 2000 to 33.7% of the town's population in 2010. The State Department of Finance is projecting that the Hispanic population in the county will rise dramatically over the next forty years, to 30% of the total County population in 2020 and 43% of the total in 2060 (see Table 4). Although Mammoth Lakes has a large Hispanic population, the rise in the Hispanic population tend to be lower-paid service workers in need of low to moderate-income housing.

Table 5: Projected Population by Race, 2010							
	2020	2040	2060				
Total	15037	17614	20755				
White	9695	9897	10502				
Hispanic	4614	6698	8906				
Asian	185	333	544				
Pacific Islander	10	8	5				
Black	42	54	68				
American Indian	209	223	244				
Multi-race	284	400	486				
% Total	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%				
% White	64.5%	56.2%	50.6%				
% Hispanic	30.7%	38.0%	42.9%				
% Asian	1.2%	1.9%	2.6%				
% Pacific Islander	0.1%	0.0%	0.0%				
% Black	0.3%	0.3%	0.3%				
% American Indian	1.4%	1.3%	1.2%				
% Multi-race	1.9%	2.3%	2.3%				

Source: CA Dept. of Finance

Age

The average median age of the individual CDPs is 45.2, significantly older than the median age within the Town of Mammoth Lakes at 32.6. The number of seniors 65 years and older increased from 10% of the unincorporated population in 1990 to 12% in 2000, to 14.2 % in 2010. Coleville had the highest percentage of children under 18, presumably due to the Marine Corps housing in Coleville. The Antelope Valley also had one of the highest percentages of seniors 65 years and older. The Long Valley/Wheeler Crest and Tri-Valley planning areas had high percentages of children under 5 and seniors 65 years and older.

Table 6: Age Characteristics by CDP, 2010 E								
	Total Population	Median Age	# Under 18	# 18 & Over	# 65 & Over	% Under 18	% 18 & over	% 65 & Over
Countywide	14,202	37.2	2,979	11223	1377	21.0%	79.0%	9.7%
Mammoth Lakes	8,234	32.6	1,719	6515	532	20.9%	79.1%	6.5%
		1	I					1
Unincorporated County	5,968	45.0	1,260	4708	845	21.1%	78.9%	14.2%
Mono County CDPs								
Chalfant	651	47.1	131	520	51	20.1%	79.9%	7.8%
Benton	280	48.8	54	226	35	19.3%	80.7%	12.5%
Paradise	153	52.9	19	134	33	12.4%	87.6%	21.6%
Swall Meadows	220	53.8	36	184	42	16.4%	83.6%	19.1%
Sunny Slopes	182	47.2	28	154	20	15.4%	84.6%	11.0%
Aspen Springs	65	47.8	14	51	7	21.5%	78.5%	10.8%
Crowley Lake	875	45.1	210	665	105	24.0%	76.0%	12.0%
McGee Creek	41	54.8	7	34	14	17.1%	82.9%	34.1%
June Lake	629	41.7	116	513	70	18.4%	81.6%	11.1%
Lee Vining	222	30.4	56	166	17	25.2%	74.8%	7.7%
Mono City	172	41	41	131	15	23.8%	76.2%	8.7%
Bridgeport	575	45.5	119	456	99	20.7%	79.3%	17.2%
Walker	721	51.1	124	597	196	17.2%	82.8%	27.2%
Coleville	495	25.7	167	328	32	33.7%	66.3%	6.5%
Topaz	50	45.7	11	39	14	22.0%	78.0%	28.0%
Total of CDPs	5,331	45.2	1,133	4198	750	21.3%	78.7%	14.1%

Source: US Census 2010

The State Department of Finance is projecting that the population in the county will age over the next twenty years, with the percent of the total County population that is elderly (65 years and over) rising from 14.2% in 2010 to 18.2% of the total in 2060 (see Table 7).

Table 7: Projected Population by Age, 2010							
2020	2040	2060					
14,833	15,037	20,755					
879	963	1,366					
2,578	2,305	3,497					
9,643	9,484	12,123					
1,733	2,286	3,768					
100.0%	100.0%	100.0%					
5.9%	6.4%	6.6%					
17.4%	15.3%	16.8%					
65.0%	63.1%	58.4%					
11.7%	15.2%	18.2%					
	2020 14,833 879 2,578 9,643 1,733 100.0% 5.9% 17.4% 65.0%	2020204014,83315,0378799632,5782,3059,6439,4841,7332,286100.0%100.0%5.9%6.4%17.4%15.3%65.0%63.1%11.7%15.2%					

Source: CA Dept. of Finance

Household Size

The 2010 census reports the total number of households in the unincorporated county to be 2,539. Average household size countywide decreased slightly from 2.51 in 1990 to 2.42 in 2010. Coleville had the highest average household sizes, with 2.89 persons per household. McGee Creek and Paradise had the lowest average household sizes, with 1.95 persons/household and 2.07 persons per household, respectively (Table 7).

Fable 8: Household Characteristics by CDP, 2010										
	Average Household Size	Average Family Size	Total Households	Household Size: 1	Household Size: 2	Household Size: 3	Household Size: 4	Household Size: 5	Household Size: 6	Household Size: 7+
Countywide	2.42	2.98	5768	1592	2182	835	657	292	118	92
Mammoth Lakes	2.5	3.14	3229	899	1145	464	392	180	80	69
Unincorporated County	2.38	3.04	2539	693	1037	371	265	112	38	23
<i>Mono County CDPs</i> Chalfant	2.47	2.87	264	53	118	43	29	14	3	4
Benton	2.3	2.81	122	40	42	19	10	9	0	2
Paradise	2.07	2.47	74	20	38	8	7	1	0	0
Swall Meadows	2.24	2.6	98	21	47	19	9	0	2	0
Sunny Slopes	2.14	2.82	85	28	31	15	9	1	1	0
Aspen Springs	2.6	2.73	25	2	13	4	5	1	0	0
Crowley Lake	2.37	2.88	367	99	138	59	47	15	7	2
McGee Creek	1.95	2.5	21	9	7	2	3	0	0	0
June Lake	2.16	2.77	290	97	119	33	20	15	4	2
Lee Vining	2.51	3.25	85	28	24	12	12	4	3	2
Mono City	2.73	2.94	63	8	30	11	8	3	2	1
Bridgeport	2.18	2.83	257	88	97	37	19	8	6	2
Walker	2.15	2.61	335	101	149	44	26	9	3	3
Coleville	2.89 2.38	3.23 3.08	171 21	25 6	53 9	35 2	36 2	20 0	1 2	1 0
Topaz	2.30	5.00	21	U	7	2	2	U	2	0
Total of CDPs Source: US Census 2010	2.39	3.04	2278	625	915	343	242	100	34	19

Source: US Census 2010

Household Tenure

The overall number of renters in the unincorporated area decreased from 40% of all occupied units in 1990 to 32% 2010. The south county CDPs generally have very high rates of owner-occupied units, the highest being Paradise at 95.9%. North county CDPs have higher renter occupied units with Coleville the highest at 71.9% due to the marine base housing.

Vacancy rates continue to increase as more units are used for second homes and short-term rental units. The overall vacancy rate in the unincorporated county increased from 34.4% in 2010 to 48.2% in 2016. The County has taken an active approach to slowing down the rate of increase by adopting strict short-term rental regulations in 2018 requiring a multi-tiered discretionary permit process. The County will continue to explore ways to incentivize long-term rentals over short-term.

Table 9: Tenure of Occupied and Vacant Units by CDP, 2010							
	% Vacant Seasonal, of Total	% Owner Occupied of Total	% Renter Occupied of Total	% Vacant of Total Units			
Mono County CDPs							
Chalfant	6.3%	87.5%	12.5%	12.3%			
Benton	10.1%	70.5%	29.5%	23.3%			
Paradise	12.6%	95.9%	4.1%	14.9%			
Swall Meadows	23.4%	91.8%	8.2%	23.4%			
Sunny Slopes	44.2%	69.4%	30.6%	45.5%			
Aspen Springs	30.6%	84.0%	16.0%	30.6%			
Crowley Lake	20.0%	78.2%	21.8%	27.0%			
McGee Creek	26.7%	95.2%	4.8%	30.0%			
June Lake	65.4%	54.1%	45.9%	66.6%			
Lee Vining	11.6%	50.6%	49.4%	24.1%			
Mono City	29.8%	71.4%	28.6%	33.0%			
Bridgeport	13.2%	62.3%	37.7%	28.0%			
Walker	10.8%	69.0%	31.0%	24.7%			
Coleville	5.5%	28.1%	71.9%	14.9%			
Topaz	28.6%	61.9%	38.1%	50.0%			
Total of CDPs	26.3%	68.6%	31.4%	34.4%			

Source: US Census 2010

Table 10: Housing Stock by Type of Vacancy								
	Total housing units	Occupied housing units	Vacant housing units	For rent				
Mono County	14,000	4,950	9,050	1,200				
Mammoth Lakes	9,829	2,791	7,038	1,009				
Unincorporated Area	4,171	2,159	2,012	191				
	Rented, not occupied	For sale only	Sold, not occupied	For seasonal, recreational, or occasional use				
Mono County	26	237	67	7,265				
Mammoth Lakes	26	112	0	5,841				
Unincorporated Area	0	125	67	1,424				

Source: ACS, 2016

Table 11: Vacancy Rates						
	Vacancy rate	Homeowner Vacancy Rate	Rental Vacancy Rate	Vacancy Rate minus Seasonal		
Mono County	64.6%	7.8%	34.9%	22.2%		
Mammoth Lakes	71.6%	9.2%	37.1%	28.5%		
Unincorporated Area	48.2%	6.9%	26.5%	12.4%		

Source: HCD 6th Cycle Data Package

Overcrowded Households

The U.S. Census Bureau defines an overcrowded household as a housing unit occupied by more than one person per room (not including kitchens and bathrooms). Units with more than 1.51 persons per room are considered severely overcrowded and indicate a significant housing need. Overcrowding is not a significant housing situation in unincorporated Mono County. Using ACS data there were 7 overcrowded households across both owner and renter-occupied units, or 0.3% of the total households in the unincorporated area (none severely crowded). Most of the overcrowded households in Mono County are in the Town of Mammoth Lakes, where there are 40 such identified households, or 1.5%. The statewide overcrowding rate for households in 2010 was 15.2% of all households, significantly higher than Mono County.

Table 12: Overcrowded Household in Unincorporated Mono County				
Households	Number			
Total	2,612			
Less than 1 per room	2,605			
1 - 1.5 per room	7			
More than 1.5 per room	0			

Source: ACS 2017

Extremely Low Income Households

Extremely low-income households are those with income less than 30% of the area's median income. Mono County's median household income in 2017 was \$60,595 (ACS 2017). Income limits are adjusted depending on the number of people in the household. For a four-person household, the current income limit for an extremely low-income household is \$19,575. For a one-person household, the income limit is \$13,725. Using these thresholds, 3.2% of households in the County are considered extremely low income.

Households with extremely low income may have a variety of housing needs. In Mono County, households receiving assistance through the CalWORKS program, Supplemental Security Income (SSI), or disability income may be considered extremely low-income households. Mono County also has a large population of service workers earning minimum wage who may fall into the extremely low-income category, depending on the number of workers in a household.

The projected number of extremely low income units needed for the cycle is seven, based on calculating half the number of low income units identified by the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (see Table 25).

Overpaying Households

Overpaying households are defined as those paying in excess of 30% of their income toward housing cost. Approximately 42% of households in the unincorporated county are considered to be overpaying, compared to 65.3% in the Town of Mammoth Lakes. Renters are more than twice as likely to be overpaying than owners.

Table 13: Overpaying Households, Unincorporated Mono County			
Total Households Characteristics	Number	Percent of Total Households	
Total occupied units (households)	2,210	100.0%	
Total Renter households	540	24.4%	
Total Owner households	1,670	75.6%	
Total lower income (0-80% of HAMFI) households	880	39.8%	
Lower income renters (0-80%)	360	16.3%	
Lower income owners (0-80%)	520	23.5%	
Extremely low income renters (0-30%)	50	2.3%	
Extremely low income owners (0-30%)	125	5.7%	
Lower income households paying more than 50%	170	7.7%	

Lower income renter HH severely overpaying	40	1.8%
Lower income owner HH severely overpaying	130	5.9%
Extremely Low Income (0-30%)	85	3.8%
ELI Renter HH severely overpaying	30	1.4%
ELI Owner HH severely overpaying	55	2.5%
Income between 30%-50%	40	1.8%
Income between 50% -80%	45	2.0%
Lower income households paying more than 30%	465	21.0%
Lower income renter HH overpaying	185	8.4%
Lower income owner HH overpaying	280	12.7%
Extremely Low Income (0-30%)	120	5.4%
Income between 30%-50%	135	6.1%
Income between 50% -80%	210	9.5%
Total Households Overpaying	940	42.5%
Total Renter Households Overpaying	365	16.5%
Total Owner Households Overpaying	575	26.0%

Source: 2006-2015 CHAS Data Sets

Table 14: Overpaying Households, Rental Units				
Renter Households Characteristics	Number	Percent of Total Households		
Total renter-occupied units (renter households)	540	100.0%		
Total lower income (0-80% of HAMFI) renter households Lower income renters paying more than 30% but less than	360	66.7%		
50%	145	26.9%		
Extremely Low Income (0-30%)	0	0.0%		
Income between 30%-50%	90	16.7%		
Income between 50% -80%	55	10.2%		
Lower income renters paying more than 50%	40	7.4%		
Extremely Low Income (0-30%)	30	5.6%		
Income between 30%-50%	10	1.9%		
Income between 50% -80%	0	0.0%		
Lower income renters paying more than 30%	185	34.3%		
Extremely Low Income (0-30%)	30	5.6%		
Income between 30%-50%	100	18.5%		
Income between 50% -80%	55	10.2%		

Source: 2006-2015 CHAS data sets
Table 15: Overpaying Households, Owner-occupied Units						
Owner Households Characteristics	Number	Percent of Total Households				
Total owner-occupied units (owner households)	1,670	100.0%				
Total lower income (0-80% of HAMFI) owner households	520	31.1%				
Lower income owner households paying more than 30% but less than 50%	150	9.0%				
Extremely Low Income (0-30%)	35	2.1%				
Income between 30%-50%	5	0.3%				
Income between 50% -80%	110	6.6%				
Lower income owner households paying more than 50%	130	7.8%				
Extremely Low Income (0-30%)	55	3.3%				
Income between 30%-50%	30	1.8%				
Income between 50% -80%	45	2.7%				
Lower income owner households paying more than 30%	280	16.8%				
Extremely Low Income (0-30%)	90	5.4%				
Income between 30%-50%	35	2.1%				
Income between 50% -80%	155	9.3%				

Source: 2006-2015 CHAS data sets

Employment

Service occupations make up the largest employment sector in the County at 34%. The following is a list of major employers in Mono County developed using the 2009 America's Labor Market Information System Employer Database (California Employment Development Department, www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov):

Employer Name	Location	Industry
Eastern Sierra Unified School District	Various	Schools
June Mountain Ski Area	June Lake	Hotels & Motels
Juniper Springs Resort	Mammoth Lakes	Resort
Mammoth Hospital	Mammoth Lakes	Hospitals
Mammoth Lakes Fire Department	Mammoth Lakes	Misc. Business
Mammoth Mountain Inn	Mammoth Lakes	Hotels & Motels
Mammoth Mountain Ski Area	Mammoth Lakes	Hotels & Motels
Mono County Government	Bridgeport	Local government
Town of Mammoth Lakes	Mammoth Lakes	Local government
U.S. Forest Service	Various	Federal government
Vons	Mammoth Lakes	Retail

Income

The overall median household income in the unincorporated area based on US 2010 Census data was \$61,868, up from \$45,325 in 2000. The median household income varied significantly, however, throughout the county with the communities near Mammoth Lakes generally having higher overall income levels.

Table 16: Household Income by CDP, 2010						
	Median	Mean				
Countywide	61,868	68,546				
Mammoth Lakes	59,972	67,089				
Mono County CDPs						
Chalfant	52,039	59,800				
Benton	33,048	35,168				
Paradise	81,346	91,905				
Swall Meadows	96,471	112,333				
Sunny Slopes	133,287	NA				
Aspen Springs	NA	NA				
Crowley Lake	85,735	76,856				
McGee Creek	89,290	141,335				
June Lake	50,329	58,173				
Lee Vining	70,172	57,240				
Mono City	42,875	48 ,652				
Bridgeport	71,250	64,143				
Walker	50,655	61,119				
Coleville	46,559	51,669				
Topaz	NA	NA				

Source: US Census

Persons with Disabilities

While persons with disabilities do not represent a significant portion of the population in the unincorporated area of the County, adequate housing remains an important concern. The Inyo Mono Association for the Handicapped (IMAH) serves disabled adults 18 and older, primarily with vocational training, supported employment and similar programs. The Inyo Mono Area Agency on Aging (IMAAA) contracts with the Mono County Department of Social Services to provide Mono County Senior Services (MCSS). IMAAA also operates the Linkages program in Mono County, which links vulnerable seniors and disabled adults to service in order to enhance their ability to maintain their independence. Mono County Senior Services (MCSS) delivers meals to 28 homes in Walker and serves 15 to 25 meals a day in the Walker Senior Center while 9 to 10 meals a day are delivered to the Benton area seniors. MCSS also has 3 clients under the Linkages Program and 28 under In Home Supportive Services (IHSS) to assist those clients with remaining

in their homes. Other than the above, the Mono County Department of Social Services does not maintain information on how many people with disabilities they may assist. Social Services provides the following resources to people in need: CalWORKS, General Assistance, Food Stamps, Medi-Caland/or CMSP.

Kern Regional Center serves disabled clients from Pearsonville in Kern County to Topaz in Mono County. Due to the size of its service area (16,000 square miles) and the relatively small number of clients (158 people), its services are prescriptive in nature and needs are addressed on an individual basis. They assist clients with adapting their homes and installing assistive devices but do not deal directly with housing.

The Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action (IMACA) provide a variety of services for disabled, low-income, and homeless persons in Inyo and Mono counties. In unincorporated Mono County, IMACA provides help with retrofit programs (wheelchair ramps, assistive devices, etc.), home weatherization programs for low-income persons, childcare, Head Start, and meals. It operates 25 low-income housing units in Mammoth Lakes as well as senior and low-income housing units in Inyo County. IMACA has Section 8 vouchers that it uses primarily for rental assistance and shelter for homeless persons. IMACA and Mono County are collaborating on the provision of transitional/supportive housing opportunities.

Table 17: Persons with Disability by Employment Status, Unincorporated County						
	Number	Percent				
Age 16-64, Employed Persons with a Disability	385	61.7%				
Age 16-64, Not Employed Persons with a Disability	113	18.1%				
Persons Age 65 Plus with a Disability	126	20.2%				
Total Persons over 15 with a Disability	624	100%				
% of Total Population	5,197	12.0%				
Source: Census Bureau (2000 Census SF 3: P42)						

Table 10. Tersons with Disabilities by	Table 18: Persons with Disabilities by Disability Type, Unincorporated County							
	Number	Percent						
Total Disabilities Tallied	1349	100.0%						
Total Disabilities for Ages 5-15	18	1.3%						
Sensory disability	0	0%						
Physical disability	0	0%						
Mental disability	18	1.3%						
Self-care disability	0	0%						
Total Disabilities for Ages 16-64	961	71.2%						
Sensory disability	104	7.7%						
Physical disability	249	18.46%						
Mental disability	81	6.0%						
Self-care disability	31	2.3%						
Go-outside home disability	125	9.3%						
Employment Disability	371	27.5%						
Total Disabilities for Ages 65 and Over	370	27.4%						
Sensory Disability	71	5.3%						
Physical disability	126	9.3%						
Mental disability	62	4.6%						
Self-care disability	18	1.3%						
Go-outside-home disability	93	6.9%						

Elderly

The elderly are defined as those 65 years and older. The 2010 Census reported that 845 seniors reside in unincorporated Mono County, or 14.2 percent of the total population. The home ownership rate of seniors is very high at 95.7% in 2000. In addition, only 18 seniors had incomes under the poverty level in 1999. Home ownership is a significant hedge against the inflationary rental environment, which is probably why there are few seniors at or below the poverty level.

Site and unit size availability are generally not a problem for seniors in Mono County due to the fact that Mono County is a rural area with the propensity for lot subdivisions rather than home subdivisions and the fact that mobile homes are permitted throughout the County on parcels zoned for single-family residences.

Due to the low number of poverty-level senior residents within the County, future needs for lowincome senior households can best be addressed through rehabilitation assistance for homeowners and rent assistance for low- and moderate-income senior renters. Currently, there is no rentalassisted housing in the unincorporated areas. IMACA operates 19 units of senior housing in Bishop. Mammoth Lakes Housing operates rental-assisted housing in Mammoth Lakes, as well as low-income housing to own.

Section 202 financing, Direct Loans for Housing for the Senior or Handicapped, administered by the Department of Housing and Urban Development, is also available to qualified sponsors for the financing or construction of rental or cooperative housing facilities for occupancy by senior or handicapped persons.

Farmworkers

Large-farm owners and ranchers in the Antelope, Bridgeport and Hammil valleys hire a limited number of farmworkers and ranch hands. Housing for most of these employees is provided on site. If this type of housing were to be eliminated, it would be difficult for farm laborers to find adequate affordable housing. The 2010 Census indicates that when the census was taken there were 17 vacant units categorized as "migratory". This number does not indicate how many total units were available for farmworkers. Farm labor housing is permitted by-right on AG-zoned parcels.

Tal	ole 19: Farmworkers, Cou	nty-Wide
Farms	Workers	\$1,000 payroll
27	165	1,370

Table 20: Farmworkers by Days Worked					
150 Days or More					
Farms	10				
Workers	108				
Farms with 10 or More Workers					
Farms	3				
Workers	84				
Fewer than 150 Days					
Farms	24				
Workers	57				

Table 21: Farmworker Housing Units, Unincorporated County									
Joe Serna Farm Worker Grant Program									
Projects Total Units									
0	0								
Employee Housing Facilities									
		# of Permanent							
Facilities	Permanent Facilities	Employees							
3	1	413							
	# of Seasonal								
Seasonal Facilities	Seasonal Facilities Employees Total Employees								
2	33	446							

Female Headed Households

The Census provides data on the total number of female-headed households, the number of those with children, and the number with incomes below the poverty level. The data are not provided separately by owner and renter and include all female heads of household; those without children may be supporting parents, or a single parent may be supporting an adult child or relative. This data is now collected by the ACS. Female heads of household are often the households most in need of affordable housing, childcare, job training and housing rehabilitation funds.

In unincorporated Mono County, there were 145 female-headed households in 2011 (5.7 percent of all households), up from 137 in 2000. Of the 145 female-headed households, none were under the poverty level however, it is likely that the ACS is underreporting due to a small sample size.

The Mono County Department of Social Services estimates that approximately 45 families in the unincorporated area with a female head of household receive assistance from CalWorks on an

ongoing basis (Julie Timerman). Under this program they are eligible to receive food stamps and Medi-Cal, as well as Welfare to Work services including, but not limited to, mental health, drug and alcohol counseling, child care, and job skills. There are no direct housing assistance programs.

Female headed households with an income under the poverty level will need affordable rental housing. In Mono County, mobile homes and small multifamily units such as duplexes and triplexes, are often the most affordable.

Table 22: Female Headed Households, Unincorporated Mono County									
Household Type Number Percent									
Female-Headed Households	145	5.7%							
Total Households	2,539	100.0%							

Source: HCD 6th Cycle data package

Emergency Shelter Needs

The need for emergency housing encompasses a large range of situations. State law requires that jurisdictions recognize emergency shelters in their zoning code. An emergency shelter is defined as, "housing with minimal supportive services for homeless person that is limited to occupancy of six months or less by a homeless person. No individual or household may be denied emergency shelter because of an inability to pay" (Health and Safety Code Section 50801 (e)). Families otherwise able to provide themselves with adequate housing may be suddenly and unexpectedly faced with the need for emergency shelter as a result of fire or family break-up. Families only marginally able to meet their housing needs may be left without shelter when their present housing is sold, when a shared housing arrangement breaks down, from an inability to pay rent, or a number of similar reasons. Finally, there is a transient population, composed of both families and individuals that may have emergency shelter needs. With the range of situations where an emergency shelter may be deemed necessary, Mono County further seeks to further define adequate emergency housing.

Mono County does not have a large homeless population, due the large and sparsely populated geography of the County, the severe winter weather conditions, and lack of proximity to services and transit. The Mono County Department of Social Services estimates that they have approximately one homeless assistance case per year, which normally is a family displaced for a short time. The social services that are provided are not concentrated in one location, making it difficult for a homeless person to utilize them, especially since there is limited public transportation within the County.

Through the joint efforts of the Mono County Department of Social Services and the Inyo-Mono Advocates for Community Action (IMACA) low-income residents and transients in Mono County may be placed in a local or nearby motel on an emergency basis for up to 28 days. IMACA has 18 Section 8 vouchers that they use primarily for rental assistance and shelter for homeless persons. IMACA also operates 24 units of low-income housing in Mammoth Lakes. The Mono County Department of Social Services provides rental assistance to assist individuals with permanent

housing or to keep them from being evicted and provides food vouchers to qualified persons. Current services are adequate for the needs in the area, but capacity to serve more people is an option if deemed necessary.

Emergency shelters are allowed in the Public Facility (PF) land use designation pursuant to clarifying language adopted concurrently with this Housing Element update <u>through General Plan Amendment 19-02</u>. The PF land use designation would currently allow <u>outright emergency</u> shelters with the permission of the public agency. <u>General Plan Amendment 19-02</u> clarifies that <u>emergency shelters are permitted outright in PF LUDs without a discretionary permit regardless</u> of <u>public landowner permission</u>. Currently, the county has designated its community centers as emergency shelters for disaster/weather-related shelter needs. Community centers are located in the PF LUD. In compliance with state law, transitional and supportive housing allowed as a residential use in all land use designations where similar housing types are allowed except the AG LUD. Transitional and supportive housing must be subject only to the restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the same type in the same designation. Mono County may pursue the creation of development standards for emergency and transitional housing to ensure that shelters will be developed in a manner that protects the health, safety, and general well-being of the public.

Emergency housing may also be a necessity during times of disaster, such as avalanches, floods, fires and earthquakes. Currently, each community area in Mono County has a designated Emergency Shelter, usually the community center or a church or school. Having an emergency shelter designation in each of the communities is imperative to Mono County because of the sporadically populated nature of the County and will avoid over-concentration of shelters in a given area. Disaster shelters may be temporarily coordinated and/or funded by the American Red Cross, the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the local Department of Social Services, the Sheriff's Department, and other appropriate private or quasi-public organizations. Although the California Office of Emergency Services has suggested that a permanent, year-round emergency disaster shelter may be appropriate for Mono County, the cost of building such a facility is well beyond the reach of the County's budget. Until such time as additional funding becomes available, use of community centers, federal buildings, churches and hotels/motels as evacuation centers/emergency shelters will continue in Mono County. The county also needs to further develop access roads in some communities in order to better serve an emergency shelter.

Housing Types

Housing in unincorporated Mono County is predominantly single-family detached units and mobile/manufactured homes. Since 1990, all types of housing in the unincorporated area increased (Table 23). During that period, multifamily units had the greatest percentage increase, although a majority of that increase occurred from 1990-2000 and the rate has slowed considerably in the last decade.

Tab	Table 23: Mono County Housing Units by Type								
		All Units			Single Detac	ched			
Mono County	2010	2018	%	2010	2018	%			
Mammoth Lakes	9,626	9,708	0.9%	2,365	2	3.1%			
Unincorporated Area	4,286	4,353	1.6%	2,854	2	2,929 2.6%			
Total	13,912	14,061	1.1%	5,219	5	2.9%			
	Si	ngle Attached	1	Two to Four					
Mono County	2010	2018	%	2010	2018	%			
Mammoth Lakes	290	290	0.0%	2,400	2,408	0.3%			
Unincorporated Area	115	120	4.3%	282	278	-1.4%			
Total	405	410	1.2%	2,682	2,686	0.1%			
		Five Plus			Mobile Hom	ies			
Mono County	2010	2018	%	2010	2018	%			
Mammoth Lakes	4,424	4,424	0.0%	147	147	0.0%			
Unincorporated Area	123	123	0.0%	912	903	-1.0%			
Total	4,547	4,547	0.0%	1,059	1,050	-0.8%			

Source: HCD 6th Cycle data package

Housing Stock Conditions

The Mono County Community Development Department completed a comprehensive Housing Condition Survey for the unincorporated area of the county in the summer of 2009. The results of that survey are shown in Table 24; results are shown for conventional single-family residences (SFR) as well as mobile homes (MH). The results have been aggregated by planning area. Data for smaller community areas within the planning areas is available from the Community Development Department. Housing units determined to be in Good Condition were in overall good condition with no repair needed. Units determined to be in Fair Condition were structurally sound but needed some minimal repair and/or paint. Units determined to be in Poor Condition were not structurally sound and needed repairs and/or paint.

Table 24: Housing Stock Conditions by Planning Area, 2009								
Number of Housing Units % of Total								al
	Unit							
Planning Area	Туре	Good	Fair	Poor	Total	Good	Fair	Poor
Antelope Valley	SFR	116	128	29	273	42.5%	46.9%	10.6%
	MH	64	58	24	146	43.8%	39.7%	16.4%
	Total	180	186	53	419	43.0%	44.4%	12.6%
Bridgeport Valley	SFR	101	87	15	203	49.8%	42.9%	7.4%
	MH	19	17	7	43	44.2%	39.5%	16.3%
	Total	120	94	22	236	50.8%	39.8%	9.3%
Mono Basin	SFR	78	33	6	117	66.7%	28.2%	5.1%
	MH	13	2	0	15	86.7%	13.3%	0.0%
	Total	91	35	6	132	68.9%	26.5%	4.5%
June Lake	SFR	261	140	18	419	62.3%	33.4%	4.3%
	MH	4	1	1	6	66.7%	16.7%	16.7%
	Total	265	141	19	425	62.4%	33.2%	4.5%
Long Valley	SFR	495	102	5	602	82.2%	16.9%	0.8%
	MH	2	1	0	3	66.7%	33.3%	0.0%
	Total	497	103	5	605	82.1%	17.0%	0.8%
Tri-Valley	SFR	90	63	14	167	53.9%	37.7%	8.4%
	MH	143	70	32	245	58.4%	28.6%	13.1%
	Total	233	133	46	412	56.6%	32.3%	11.2%
Total	SFR	1141	553	87	1781	64.1%	31.0%	4.9%
	MH	245	149	64	458	53.5%	32.5%	14.0%

Source: Mono County Community Development Department, Housing Conditions Survey.

A survey of homeowners completed as part of the 2017 Housing Needs Assessment provides updated data. As shown in Figure 3, about 75 percent of Mono County residents rate their home's condition as either excellent or good. Homeowners are much more likely to report excellent condition than renters (42% versus 13%). Among communities with sufficient data for analysis, Crowley residents are most likely to rate their home in excellent condition (47%). Bridgeport residents are most likely to rate their home's condition as fair (27%) or poor (8%).



Of those with homes in fair or poor condition, 88 percent report the need for repairs. Figure 4 presents the most important needed repairs. Nearly half of those homes in fair or poor condition require improved weatherization.



Needs Assessment

Overview

Although much of the County's overall growth has occurred within the boundaries of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, housing shortages within Town are shifting demand into the unincorporated County. Modest development in the County has made it difficult to accommodate this new demand, leading to increased housing prices. Much of the County's recent housing growth has been driven by second homeownership and, more recently, vacation rentals. At 35%, Mono County has one of the lowest permanent resident occupancy rates when compared with similar counties (2017 Needs Assessment). The unincorporated County remains a single family detached home market, with typical rural development patterns. As demand from the Town of Mammoth Lakes puts pressure on the County's inventory, development patterns may see a shift to accommodate growth.

A clear majority of existing attached units tend to be luxury units and are in the Town of Mammoth Lakes. At the time of the 2017 Needs Assessment, all but one of the attached units for sale in the County are in Mammoth Lakes and have a median price well above affordable levels for an average household in the County. Further, significant Homeowner's Association (HOA) fees decrease affordability of such units by approximately \$100,000, making the actual price point even more difficult to attain.

Attached products are at a significant deficit for the workforce and families due to lack of affordability in Mammoth Lakes and lack of supply in the unincorporated area. Of the residential units in the unincorporated area, just seven percent are multifamily developments (a roughly even split between duplexes/triplexes and condos /apartments). As attached options become less affordable in town, the unincorporated area should expect to have even greater pressure to provide these types of units.

While the single family detached category provides more listings, most homes are still well out of reach for the typical worker. Renters who could have moved into ownership in the 1990s cannot find affordable homes to buy—yet most of them (90%) would like to buy in the next five years. To become homeowners, an average renter in the County who wants to buy would need a home priced at around \$200,000—or \$400,000 for a two-earner renter household. In the unincorporated County, there were fewer than 10 single family homes priced under \$450,000 available for sale in August 2017 when BBC conducted the study, and no condominiums. Only one of these units was located south of Bridgeport.

Projections show the County has very little housing inventory to absorb future job growth. The jobs most likely to grow in the future are in tourist-related industries: food services and preparation, housekeeping, retail, and services. These jobs typically pay around \$10 per hour—or \$20,000 per year. Most workers in the County hold more than one job, putting their annual earnings closer to \$35,000 per year. This is nearly enough to afford the median rent, particularly with a roommate who works. However, if additional affordable units are not created, median rent could be increased to a point that is out of reach for those in the County's largest and fastest-growing employment sector.

Understanding future housing needs and creating a target will be critical in short and long-range efforts.

A housing model developed by BBC estimates a range of current and future housing needs. The modeling exercise found a current need of between 175 and 450 rental units in the County overall. The low end of this range captures units that are needed to accommodate unfilled jobs help and workers who will leave the County due to housing conditions. The high end of the range includes providing rental units for in-commuters who want to live in the County. The model suggests that 50 to 100 units are needed in the unincorporated County, a range that will be heavily influenced by overflow demand from the Town of Mammoth Lakes.

Future housing needs are largely determined by employment growth and estimates of job growth differ widely due to variance in economic conditions. The housing needs projections for 2022 use three job growth scenarios: one based on last year's growth, one incorporating the more aggressive state growth estimates, and one based on input from surveyed employers. The most conservative estimate for the County, which includes the Town of Mammoth Lakes, shows a need for 184 additional housing units by 2022. The accelerated growth estimate suggests a need for as many as 664 units. A reasonable middle ground estimate for the unincorporated County shows a need for 70 housing units to accommodate new housing demand from employment growth, which would be in addition to the 50 to 100 units that are needed to address renters' needs currently. In all, the unincorporated County has a need for between 120 and 170 units to accommodate current needs and future employment growth through 2022.

Often a housing needs assessment will delineate conditions based on a jurisdiction's needs en masse, as reflected by many of the previous numbers discussed here. However, needs and strategies are identified here on a more local basis. For example, June Lake has an occupation rate of around 25 percent, compared to approximately 75 percent in Bridgeport and the Mono Basin, and 91 and 88 percent in Topaz and Walker respectively. Clearly the dynamics of each community are significantly different, where June Lake may look to strategies aimed at conversion of stock to more long-term resident options, while other communities may need to increase the quality of affordable options. For this reason, the Housing Element attempts to provide separate analysis of each planning area, in addition to County-wide data.

Current Housing Needs	County Overall	Mammoth Lakes	Unincorporated County
Renter Demand			
Rental units needed to house workers for unfilled jobs	40-55	40-55	5-10
Commuters who would like to live in Mammoth Lakes	220	220	0
Worker households who plan to leave the County due to lack of housing	31	25	7
Year round worker households that are overcrowded	247	116	131
Seasonal worker households that are overcrowded	44	44	0
Units needed to alleviate overcrowding (1-1.5 unit per overcrowded household)	100-125	55-70	45-55
Renters who had to move because they can't afford housing or their units	299	199	100
converted to seasonal (for comparison) Range of Unmet Demand for Rental Units	175-450	125-350	50-100
Range of onmet bemand for Rental Onits	175-450	125-550	50-100
Ownership Demand by Renters			
Households who currently rent and want to be owners in the next 5 years	1,009	640	369
Current owners who plan to sell in next five years	363	176	187
Seasonal owners who plan to sell in the next five years	405	359	47
Total units that could be available to new owners	768	534	234
Range of Demand for Ownership	235-625	100-375	135-250
Repair Needs			
Occupied units			
Owners who need repairs (units in "fair" or "poor" condition)	332	176	156
Owners who need signifiant repairs (units in "poor" condition)	33	18	16
Renters who need repairs (units in "fair" or "poor" condition)	1291	846	445
Renters who need significant repairs (units in "poor" condition)	283	186	98
Future Needs			
From Employer Survey (Lower Bound Estimates)			
FTE equivalent worker housing needed	83		
FTE seasonal workers housing needed	102		
New housing units needed, 2022	184	144	40
Continued Employment Growth Scenario (Middle Estimates)			
Current employment, excluding self employed	7,430		
Growth 2016-2017	2%		
Projected employment, 2022	8,163		
New jobs by 2022 if future growth is similar to 2016-2017	733	608	125
New housing units needed, 2022	339	269	70
State Projections of New Jobs plus Replacement (Upper Bound Estimates)			
New jobs, regional growth by industry applied to Mono County	444		
Replacement jobs	991		
New jobs by 2022 based on state projections	1,435	1,135	300
Employees needed	1,196		
New housing units needed, 2022	664	524	140
Self Employed Workers, Estimated Range of Growth			
Job growth, self-employed workers	240		
New units for self-employed workers	133		

Note: Model assumes that there are 1.8 workers per household, except for seasonal (2.5), and workers hold 1.2 jobs.

Source: BBC Research & Consulting.

RHNA

The Regional Housing Need allocated to unincorporated Mono County for the period of December 31, 2018 through August 15, 2027 is shown in Table 25. The income groups are defined as follows:

Very Low Income	0-50% of the area's median income (AMI)
Low Income	51-80% of AMI
Moderate Income	81-120% of AMI
Above Moderate Income	Over 120% of AMI

The median income for a 4-person household in Mono County in 2018 was \$81,200 (HCD, 2018 state income limits). Income limits are adjusted depending on the number of people in the household. The median household income in 2010, regardless of household size, was \$61,868.

Table 25: Regional Housing Needs, Unincorporated Mono County, 2019-2027			
Income Group	Number	Percent	
Very Low	13 units	15.3%	
Low	16 units	18.8%	
Moderate	21 units	24.7%	
Above Moderate	35 units	41.2%	
Total	85 units	100.0%	

Source: HCD

In the past, Mono County allocated its overall regional housing needs to communities in the unincorporated area based on the percentage of the population in each community area. Due to concerns in some communities over the arbitrary nature of such an allocation, the County has decided to no longer allocate its regional housing needs to community areas. To address concerns over community specific needs, the County relies on area plan policies and a location-based site inventory analysis.

Table 25 shows the number of housing units by income group permitted in the unincorporated portion of Mono County between January 2014 and December 2018, based on project valuation.

Income Group	# of Units Permitted	5 th Cycle RHNA
Very Low	0	11
Low	19	7
Moderate	52	9
Above Moderate	51	19
Total	122	46

Source: California Department of Housing and Community Development - Division of Housing Policy Development, Raw Annual Progress Report Data; Mono County Community Development Department.

Table 27: Projected Creation of Units to Meet 6 th Cycle RHNA, by type				
Income Level	New Construction	Rehabilitation	Conservation/Preservation	
Very Low	11	2	0	
Low	13	3	0	
Moderate	21	0	0	
Above	35	0	0	
Moderate				

The county averages approximately one conversion/rehabilitation every two years, typically in the form of a garage conversion. The remaining RHNA numbers are projected to be met through the construction of new units. The County does not have a historical preservation district, funding source, or regulatory mechanism to preserve or conserve units. No units are at risk from converting from affordable to market rate *(Source: HCD)*.

Buildout

Buildout calculations can provide an idea of the amount of residential land remaining in the County and, more specifically, how much potential remains in each land use designation. Buildout numbers are intended to provide a "ceiling" for development as land is currently constituted and does not attempt to project development. In reality, development on individual parcels rarely approaches maximum potential (particularly for multi-family land uses) and therefore numbers should be viewed as a maximum bound. Calculations are based on the following assumptions:

- 1. Potential is based on the current configurations of individual parcels. The possibility for subdivisions, lot line adjustments, and lot mergers were not considered. Each parcel is analyzed in a vacuum, regardless of surrounding lots.
- 2. Theoretical potential is then reduced by considering the following constraints:
 - a. Limitations due to hazards, including avalanche danger. Areas are determined based on County hazard maps, which indicate conditional development zones.
 - b. Limitations based on water and sewer services;
 - c. Limitations on agricultural development based on area plan policies; and
 - d. Development credits for agriculture parcel.
- 3. Physical constraints, including steep slopes, streams, and outcroppings are not considered.
- 4. Infill potential on currently built-on parcels is only factored in for the following commercial areas on multi-family, mixed-use, and commercial lots: June Lake, Lee Vining, and Bridgeport. A parcel located in these locations is deemed to have potential if existing development is below 50% of maximum potential;
- 5. For land use designations allowing both residential and commercial development, buildout for the purpose of the Housing Element assumes only residential development will occur.
- 6. Accessory dwelling units were not factored into buildout potential.

7. Buildout does not consider time. Particular land use designations and communities have faster rates of growth, but buildout is considered on an infinite timeline based on the current configuration of land.

Table 28: Buildout Calculations by Land Use Designation				
			% of Total Unit	
LUD	Acres	Unit Potential	Potential	
Agriculture (AG)	77,174	4,887	32.8%	
Commercial (C)	123	1,089	7.3%	
Commercial Lodging (CL)	20	210	1.4%	
Estate Residential (ER)	4,324	1,246	8.4%	
Industrial/Industrial Park (I/IP)	63	50	0.3%	
Multi-Family Residential (MFR)	50	523	3.5%	
Public Facilities (PF)	6	6	0.04%	
Mixed Use (MU)	302	1,389	9.3%	
Resource Management (RM)	31,469	723	4.9%	
Rural Mobile Home (RMH)	432	384	2.6%	
Rural Residential (RR)	4,021	484	3.3%	
Rural Resort (RU)	344	70	0.5%	
Scenic Area Agriculture (SAA)	3	10	0.1%	
Service Commercial (SC)	4	17	0.1%	
Single-Family Residential (SFR)	981	2,524	17.0%	
Specific Plan (SP)	598	1,268	8.5%	
Total Buildout	119,914	14,880	100%	

According to 2015 American Community Survey data, there are currently 4,260 units in the unincorporated county, representing 29% of full buildout. The largest share of potential lies on agriculture lands, but development on these parcels is likely to be insignificant as shown by historical patterns and is discouraged by General Plan policies. Most development will likely occur on single-family residential and estate residential parcels, continuing the trend of detached products in the County. Approximately 92% of units in the County are single-family detached homes.

Multi-family residential (MFR) lots often provide the greatest opportunity for high density development and nearly half of the MFR parcels in the County are undeveloped. However, just one of these lots exceeds one acre in size. Multi-family development will need to occur through smaller complexes or specific plans.

An analysis of buildout broken down by community is presented in the next section.

Community Profiles

The Housing Element divides the County into seven major planning areas:

- 1. Antelope Valley
- 2. Bridgeport Valley
- 3. Mono Basin (Lee Vining and Mono City)
- 4. June Lake
- 5. Long Valley (Crowley Lake, Sunny Slopes, Aspen Springs, McGee Creek)
- 6. Wheeler Crest (Swall Meadows and Paradise)
- 7. Tri-Valley (Benton, Hammil, and Chalfant Valleys)

The seven planning areas represent over 90% of the County's unincorporated population. Each area has a unique set of housing challenges and is represented by their own Regional Planning Advisory Committee (RPAC). The following section profiles each area, including buildout data, relevant characteristics, opportunity sites, and challenges and constraints.



Mono County planning area



Quick Facts ¹	Antelope Valley Buildout Potential		
Communities: Walker (pop. 721)	Land Use Designation	Acres	Unit Potential
Coleville (pop. 495)	AG	15,047	1,470
Topaz (pop. 50)	ER	411	312
Housing Units: 842	MU	208	189
nousing Units. 842	RM	467	10
Percentage of housing stock in poor	RMH	69	23
condition is highest in County (12.6%)	RR	1,859	392
	SAA	3	4
High percentage of year-round occupancy (90%)	RU	4	17
	Total	18,091	2,402
Approximately 1/4 of residences are manufactured homes			
	Buildout Pote	ntial Rem	aining: 64.9%



Land use designations near Walker

Antelope Valley is in the northernmost section of Mono County and includes the communities of Walker, Coleville, and Topaz. The region is characterized by its strong agricultural values and large rural lots. Most of the remaining housing potential is on rural residential (RR), estate residential (ER), and agriculture (AG) parcels. Several mixed-use parcels along Highway 395 through Walker contain development potential.

Antelope Valley does not share many of the same issues faced by other communities in the County. Over 90% of residences are occupied year-round and the housing shortage is considered minor.

A focus for Antelope Valley should be improving existing stock. Nearly 13% of housing stock in the area is considered poor, the highest rate in the County. Weatherization and rehabilitation programs would be most beneficial for residents.

Renters looking to own property in the region also reported a strong desire to maintain the first-time homebuyer assistance program.

Growth in Antelope Valley is projected to remain incremental. The County has not identified sites for larger projects as development is expected to occur mainly in the form of single-family residences on rural lots. Manufactured homes are likely to remain a popular avenue for residents looking to reduce costs over traditional stick-built housing.



Quick Facts ²	Bridgeport Valley Buildout Potential			
Population: 575	Land Use Designation	Acres	Unit Potential	
и и и азз	AG	24,270	936	
Housing Units: 333	С	27	266	
Stagnant growth (current	ER	285	278	
population equal to 1980	I/IP	25	10	
census)	MFR	28	306	
	MU	40	583	
Oldest housing stock in County (64% at least 40 years old)	RM	399	16	
	RR	35	35	
years old)	RU	119	26	
	SFR	129	535	
	Total	25,350	2,991	
	Buildout Potential Remaining: 88.9%			

² 2017 Mono County Housing Needs Assessment



Land Use Designations in the Bridgeport Valley

The Bridgeport Valley consists of the Bridgeport townsite and surrounding agriculture parcels of the valley. Growth has been static for the past four decades – the population was 575 in 1980, 576 in 1990, and 575 in 2010. The result is an aging housing stock, with nearly two-thirds of units built more than forty years ago.

There are several key sites available within the core of Bridgeport offering both vacant and redevelopment opportunities. Commercial and multi-family zones along Main Street allow for high density development. With a number of suitable locations available, the main barrier is economic viability. The cost of construction for residential units in Mono County exceeds \$300 per square foot, and it is challenging for developers to get a good return on investment. Water quality due to the presence of arsenic may also be an issue for some lots.

Key Sites

Buster's Market (Redevelopment)

APN: 008-092-003, 008-092-006,

008-092-009

Acres: 1.77

Unit Potential: 23

LUD: Commercial, Multi-Family Low

Income Level: Moderate

Potential for redevelopment of the former Buster's Market, an existing vacant building. Property consists of three parcels – two commercial lots and one multi-family low (MFR-L). Site is located along main street at the northern end of the Bridgeport core. The County will consider re-zoning to MFR-H to accommodate more density.

424 Main Street

APN: 008-093-026

Acres: 0.22

Unit Potential: 3

LUD: Commercial

Income Level: Moderate

Adjacent to the vacant "Buster's Market" property, this commercial parcel could provide site for a small multi-family or mixed-use development along main street. No infrastructure improvements required.





175 Main Street (Underdeveloped)

APN: 008-141-004

Acres: 0.94

Unit Potential: 14

LUD: Commercial

Income Level: Low, Moderate

Property is a candidate for infill or redevelopment. Parcel is in the Bridgeport core and has access from Main Street (Highway 395) and Kingsley Street. No infrastructure improvements required.

Alpine Vista Estates

Acres: 3.1

Unit Potential: 12

LUD: SFR

Income Level: Moderate

Subdivision of single-family lots located along Highway 182. Agreement is in place to improve roads for subdivision. Project on hold until market conditions improve.



186 Milk Ranch Rd

APN: 008-080-011

Acres: 74.3

LUD: Estate Residential, Specific Plan

Income Level: Moderate

Large parcel located east of the Bridgeport townsite. Main constraints are water quality environmental impacts due to the presence of alkali flats and wetlands.



APN: 008-030-014

Acres: 163.2

LUD: Resource Management

Income Level: Moderate

Large flat parcel located north of the Bridgeport townsite along Highway 182. Lot is owned by BLM and could be a candidate for a land exchange proposal.





Quick Facts ³	Mono Basin Buildout Potential			
Communities:	Land Use Designation	Acres	Unit Potential	
Lee Vining (pop. 222)	AG	293	96	
Mono City (pop. 172)	С	27	127	
Total Population: 394	ER	400	24	
Older housing stock: 47% over 30	Ι	5	5	
years old	RM	10,440	232	
	RR	318	22	
Large household size: 2.61	SAA	3	4	
(County average: 2.40)	SC	4	17	
High percentage of Hispanics:	SFR	167	188	
31.5%	Tioga Inn Specific Plan	57	100	
(County average: 16.5%)	~ .			
	Total	11,660	815	
	Buildout Potential Remaining: 77.2%			

³ 2017 Mono County Housing Needs Assessment, 2010 Census

61 | Mono County Housing Element | 2019-2027

Background

The Mono Basin planning area encompasses the communities of Lee Vining, Mono City, and the surrounding large rural parcels of the basin. Lee Vining, which serves as the gateway to Yosemite National Park, primarily consists of commercial parcels along the Highway 395 corridor, with small pockets of single family residential located away from main street. Vacant land suitable for residential development is sparse within Lee Vining, with most potential being through redevelopment. Maintenance yards located on the north end of the community are a possible candidate for residential redevelopment, but complexities related to the parcel make immediate plans unlikely. The largest and most realistic concentrated potential lies to the south of Lee Vining within the Tioga Inn Specific Plan, located at the junction of Highway 120 and Highway 395. The Specific Plan allows for development of 100 residential units under the proposed 2019 amendment. Utilities within the Lee Vining area, including water, power and, sewer, may have adequate capacity at full buildout (further analysis required).

Most of the remaining existing residential units are single family residential units located on the north end of Mono Lake in the community of Mono City. The rest of the basin is comprised of large lots – mainly rural residential (RR), estate residential (ER), and resource management (RM). A portion of the rural area falls under the Mono Basin National Forest Scenic Area Private Property Development Guidelines, which limits construction of larger projects. Parcels in Mono Basin outside of the Lee Vining area require individual water and sewer systems.

Demographically, Mono Basin stands out for its high percentage of children and large household sizes. The area has the second lowest median age in county (30) and approximately 2 in 5 residents live with roommates. Median household income is slightly above County average but is partly influenced by households having a higher than average number of earners. The area also has a high percentage of older units, with 47% built more than 30 years ago. Despite the large number of older units, housing stock is in good condition with less than 5% reported as being in poor condition (needing significant repair). The most common identified need to improve existing stock was funds for weatherization and energy efficiency (45% of responders).

To help aid in providing long-term housing to the local workforce, non-owner-occupied short-term rentals are prohibited in the Mono City.



Key Sites

Tioga Inn Specific Plan

APN: 021-080-025

Acres: 32.1

Unit Potential: 100

Income Level: Moderate

A 2019 Specific Plan Amendment is expected to allow for up to 150 additional workforce housing bedrooms, or approximately 100 units. The proposed workforce housing area is located along the southern property boundary, directly south of the promontory restaurant.

Impacts and constraints will be analyzed as part of Tioga Inn Specific Plan Amendment #3.





Quick Facts ⁴	June Lake Buildout Potential			
Population: 631	Land Use	e Designation	Acres	Unit Potential
Housing Units: 869		С	18	180
A managing at also 2/4 of maits and		CL	20	210
Approximately 3/4 of units are not permanently occupied		ER	8	3
not permanentry occupied	MFR		18	165
Nearly 1/4 of units are multi-	MU		11	131
family, the highest percentage	SFR		166	710
in the County		Rodeo		
	Specific Plan	Grounds		789
High percentage of renter- occupied units (48% among permanently occupied units)		Highlands I		3
		Highlands II		153
	Total		563	2,518
	Buildout Potential Remaining: 65.5%			ing: 65.5%

⁴ 2017 Mono County Housing Needs Assessment, 2013 June Lake Area Plan – Housing Section **64** | Mono County Housing Element | 2019-2027

Background

June Lake's housing landscape provides a great deal of variety. A mix of multi-family and single-family land uses dispersed throughout the community provides the opportunity to serve a diverse population. Much of the buildout potential remains in specific plans, particularly the Rodeo Grounds Specific Plan located across from June Mountain.

June Lake's housing stock is a combination of older and newer units. Over half of the stock has been constructed since 1990, a ratio higher than County average, but over 14 percent of units were built more than fifty years ago, the second highest percentage of all the County's planning areas (Bridgeport is at 20 percent).

Perhaps the defining characteristic of housing in June Lake is the low percentage of permanently occupied units. Nearly three out of four units are not permanently occupied, typically being used as second homes or short-term rentals. The community has developed stringent, neighborhood-specific short-term rental policies, which may help increase the number of long-term housing opportunities.

Key development challenges include avalanche hazard, difficult lot configurations, and environmental constraints. Many of the lots located east of Highway 158 are limited due to being in conditional development zones that present avalanche danger. Single family residences may be constructed in these zones at the risk of the owner, but the infrastructure does not exist to support access and development. Other lots in the community are challenging to build on due to a number of factors, including lot narrowness, stream setbacks, topography, and the inability to meet snow storage requirements.



Key Sites Rodeo Grounds Specific Plan APN: 015-010-065 Acres: 81.5 U.S. Forest Service Land 158 Unit Potential: 789 Income Level: Low, Moderate, Above Moderate Rodeo Grounds Project Location Proposed Specific Plan included three elements: resort services, market-rate housing, and affordable SCE Parce Day Skier Parking housing. Specific Plan still requires approval prior to development. 158 June Mountain Base Lodg **Highlands Specific Plan** Acres: 21.2 Unit Potential: 153 (39 SFR, 114 MFR) Income Level: Moderate, Above Moderate USFS Ň X **Signifies Sold Lots** The Highlands Specific Plan allows for up to 39 as of 6/1/2018 June Mountain Ski Resort single-family residential units (16 constructed as of January 2019) and 114 multi-family residential

units.

Northshore Drive ER/SP

APN: 015-300-005

Acres: 14.1

Income Level: Moderate, Above Moderate

Multiple-owner parcel designated as Estate Residential/Specific Plan. Possible location of future planned development.



25 Mountain Vista Drive

APN: 015-010-055

Acres: 30.2

Income Level: Moderate, Above Moderate

Property is owned by Inyo National Forest. A land exchange could provide an appropriate site for affordable housing adjacent to the existing Highlands Specific Plan.





Quick Facts ⁵	Long Valley Buildout Potential		
Communities:	Land Use Designation	Acres	Unit Potential
Crowley Lake (pop: 880)	С	35	497
Sunny Slopes (pop: 182)	ER	422	212
Aspen Springs (pop: 65) McGee Creek (pop: 41)	MFR	4	52
McGee Creek (pop: 41)	MU	33	478
Housing Units: 658	PF	3	2
	RM	59	1
Approximately 4/5 of units are owner occupied	RR	71	8
Highest average household income in County	SFR	338	770
Less than 1% of units are in poor condition			
	Total	965	1,968
	Buildout Potentia	l Remainin	g: 66.6%

⁵ 2010 US Census, 2017 Mono County Housing Needs Assessment

68 | Mono County Housing Element | 2019-2027

Background



Long Valley Land Use Designations

The Long Valley Planning Area consists of the communities of Crowley Lake, Sunny Slopes, Aspen Springs, and McGee Creek. As the nearest communities to Mammoth Lakes, they are heavily influenced by the County's economic center. Long Valley residents have the highest average household income in the County and the majority of the area's workforce commutes to Mammoth Lakes.

The area features mostly single-family units and nearly 80 percent of residences are permanently occupied. Nonowner-occupied short term rentals are prohibited. Long Valley's housing stock is of good quality, with less than one percent of units reported as being in poor condition.

Long Valley's outlook will be heavily tied to housing trends in the Town of Mammoth Lakes. There is currently limited land for the affordable, higher density development in high demand in Town. Pressures from Mammoth Lakes may lead to increased demand for community housing sites in the area.
Key Sites School District Parcel APN: 060-110-014 Acres: 25.9 LUD: Public Facility Income Level: Moderate Parcel owned by the Mammoth Unified School District. Potential site for housing school district employees. **Crowley Lake RM** APN: 060-220-008 Acres: 59.4 LUD: Resource Management Income Level: Moderate Expired tract map for single-family residential with future potential for specific plan development due to size and location. Steep slopes on property. Could provide mix of housing types.

379 South Landing Road

APN: 060-210-031

Acres: 9.0

Unit Potential: 53

LUD: Commercial, Specific Plan

Income Level: Moderate

Under the now-expired Crowley Estates Specific Plan, the property offers an opportunity for a mix of housing in the center of the Crowley Lake community. Infrastructure constraints are the largest concern for potential development, particularly water. Currently capacity does not exist to serve a higher density development, including the need for firerelated services.

Aspen Springs ER

APN: 062-040-019

Acres: 37.6

Unit Potential: 20-30

LUD: Estate Residential

Income Level: Moderate

Large Estate Residential parcel in Aspen Springs. Parcel could be a candidate for specific plan development. Possible constraints include steep slopes, water service, and riparian area on the east side of the property.



Aspen Springs Mixed Use

APN: 062-040-010

Acres: 36.0

LUD: Mixed Designation

Income Level: Moderate

Candidate for mixed development in Aspen Springs, including housing. Constraints include water service and potential steep slopes on the east side of the property.



Sunny Slopes SFR

APN: 062-060-001, 062-070-010

Acres: 12.8

Unit Potential: 11

LUD: Single-Family Residential

Income Level: Moderate

Two adjacent single-family residential (SFR) parcels in Sunny Slopes, totaling just shy of 13 acres. Access would likely require agreement from Inyo National Forest.



Quick Facts ⁶	Wheeler Crest Buildout Potential			
Communities:	Land Use Designation	Acres	Unit Potential	
Swall Meadows (pop: 220)	ER	719	232	
Paradise (pop: 155)	RM	3	2	
Housing Units: 216	SFR	130	154	
Lowest average household size (2.13) and highest median age in County (53.4)				
Highest percentage of owner-occupied units in County (93.8%)	Total	852	389	
	Buildout Potential Remaining: 45.5%			

Background

The Wheeler Crest planning area consists of the communities of Swall Meadows and Paradise. Residential designations are exclusively Estate Residential (ER) and Single-Family Residential (SFR), which provides for single-family residences (and possible accessory units) on larger lots. The planning area is notable for its low average household size (correlated with its high median age) and a high percentage of owner-occupied units (93.8%).

Recent development has largely been reconstruction following the 2015 Round Fire – six homes have been rebuilt since the fire, with more underway. The Rock Creek Ranch Specific Plan, located east of Paradise, provides an opportunity for a singlefamily residential subdivision. However, water service and access remain barriers for the potential project.



Wheeler Crest Planning Area boundaries

Key Sites

Rock Creek Ranch Specific Plan

APN: 026-330-002

Acres: 55.3

Unit Potential: 23

LUD: Estate Residential, Specific Plan

Income Level: Moderate

Specific Plan for single-family development. Specific Plan was amended in 2014 to reduce unit potential from 59 to 23 due to CalFire requirement for secondary emergency access. Constraints include water service and access from Lower Rock Creek Road due to challenging grades.





Quick Facts ⁷	Tri-Valley Buildout Potential			
Communities:	Land Use Designation	Acres	Unit Potential	
Benton (pop: 280)	AG	5,360	1,567	
Chalfant (pop: 651)	С	23	19	
Housing Units: 460	ER	849	387	
nousing Clints. 400	MU	10	8	
Lowest median income in	RM	3	2	
County	RMH	363	361	
A	RR	1,386	508	
Approximately half of units are manufactured homes				
Flood plain restricts				
development	Total	8,386	2,635	
	Buildout Potential Remaining: 82.6%			

Background

The Tri-Valley area covers the Benton, Hammil, and Chalfant Valleys located along the Highway 6 corridor. The planning area consists primarily of large agriculture and rural residential parcels. A significant number of lots are designated Rural Mobile Home (RMH) and approximately half of all units in the Tri-Valley are manufactured homes. As the planning area with the lowest median income, the Tri-Valley will continue to rely on mobile home development as an affordable means to housing. Having the lowest snow load standards in the County allows for more flexibility in cost-effective builds.

The primary constraint in the area is the vast FEMA floodplain. The floodplain mainly covers agriculture designations, but also restricts and makes development costlier on some rural residential lots.



Key Sites

White Mountain Estates Specific Plan

Acres: 70.4

Unit Potential: 46

Adopted specific plan that allows up to 46 single-family residences.



Site Inventory

Identified Parcels

In addition to the key sites identified in the community profiles section, there exists a number of locations suitable for housing that meets the Regional Housing Needs Allocation. Typically, housing that fits the need for a variety of income levels is met through land use designations that allow for high density. These land use designations include Multi-Family Residential (Low, Moderate, and High; MFR-L, MFR-M, MFR-H), Commercial, and Mixed Use (MU). The undeveloped parcels within these land use designations that have the potential for at least two units and are located within areas of need are listed in the tables on the following page. All identified sites are vacant and have the capacity for water, sewer, and dry utilities (electricity, internet, etc.).

Site analysis includes the following assumptions:

- 1. Potential is based on the current configurations of individual parcels. The possibility for subdivisions, lot line adjustments, and lot mergers were not considered. Each parcel is analyzed in a vacuum, regardless of surrounding lots.
- 2. For land use designations allowing both residential and commercial development, potential assumes only residential development will occur.
- 3. Potential reflects reductions based on the following physical constraints:
 - a. Limitations due to hazards, including avalanche danger. Areas are determined based on County hazard maps, which indicate conditional development zones.
 - b. Steep slopes and large rock outcroppings.
 - c. Streams, including a 30 foot setback from top of bank.
- 4. Analysis typically completed during CEQA review, including impacts to biological and visual resources, were not considered when calculating potential.
- 5. All parcels identified for low income development are between 0.5 acres and 10 acres. Justification is required if parcels identified for low income fall outside those boundaries. The identified sites provide enough capacity for all income levels as identified in the RHNA.

Table 29: Identified	Vacant Sites	in Bridgep	ort Suitable for	High Density Development
Parcel APN	LUD	Acres	Unit Potential	Income Level
008091034	MFR-L	0.18	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008091039	MFR-L	0.18	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
113010030	MU	0.55	6	Low/Very Low
113010040	MU	0.55	6	Low/Very Low
112910060	MU	0.83	8	Low/Very Low
008132011	MFR-L	0.34	8	Moderate/Above Moderate
008141011	С	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008132038	С	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008133034	MFR-L	1.03	12	Low/Very Low
008102011	С	0.26	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008093031	MFR-L	0.26	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008211008	MU	0.24	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008211001	MU	0.36	4	Moderate/Above Moderate
008220032	MFR-M	0.25	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008213014	MU	0.31	4	Moderate/Above Moderate
008091024	MFR-L	0.18	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008091032	MFR-L	0.19	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008091043	MFR-L	0.31	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008091041	MFR-L	0.18	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008213010	MU	0.18	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008070035	MU	0.23	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008091035	MFR-L	0.33	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
113010020	MU	0.55	7	Low/Very Low
113010050	MU	0.55	7	Low/Very Low
008133032	MFR-L	0.66	6	Low/Very Low
008133039	MFR-L	0.48	5	Moderate/Above Moderate
008133027	MFR-L	0.84	8	Low/Very Low
008141008	С	0.21	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008134015	С	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008142024	С	0.24	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008132037	С	0.19	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008142020	С	0.2	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008092003	С	0.67	6	Low/Very Low
008131012	С	0.45	5	Moderate/Above Moderate
008102013	С	0.23	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008092007	MFR-L	0.28	3	Moderate/Above Moderate

79 | Mono County Housing Element | 2019-2027

008093026	С	0.23	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008092008	MFR-L	0.24	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008211010	MU	0.29	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008213012	MU	0.73	7	Low/Very Low
008211002	MU	0.27	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008211003	MU	0.27	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008212008	MFR-M	0.24	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008212007	MFR-M	0.28	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008210002	MFR-M	0.26	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008210006	MFR-M	0.41	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
008091046	MFR-L	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
008211006	MU	0.23	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
TOTAL		16.62	185	

Table 30: Identified Vacant Sites in June Lake Suitable for High Density Development				
Parcel APN	LUD	Acres	Potential Units	Income Level
015104055	MFR-H	0.53	5	Low/Very Low
015104056	MFR-H	0.30	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
015103022	MFR-H	0.43	6	Moderate/Above Moderate
016193025	С	0.37	5	Moderate/Above Moderate
015072017	MU	0.38	5	Moderate/Above Moderate
015104047	MU	0.33	4	Moderate/Above Moderate
015072015	MU	0.24	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015073026	MFR-H	0.24	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015072016	MU	0.25	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015111029	MU	0.23	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015111027	MU	0.23	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015111028	MU	0.23	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015111014	MU	0.11	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015112017	MU	0.11	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015112019	MU	0.11	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015112006	MU	0.11	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015112011	MU	0.11	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015103018	MFR-H	0.23	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015113070	MU	0.23	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
015113042	MU	0.11	3	Moderate/Above Moderate

015086037	С	0.23	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217024	MFR-L	0.29	3	Moderate/Above Moderate
016192014	MFR-L	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016192013	MFR-L	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217036	MFR-L	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217039	MFR-L	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217033	MFR-L	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217038	MFR-L	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217040	MFR-L	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217027	MFR-L	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217029	MFR-L	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217032	MFR-L	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217031	MFR-L	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217028	MFR-L	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016216030	MFR-L	0.25	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217030	MFR-L	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
015086018	С	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
015075016	С	0.18	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
015113014	С	0.17	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
015113054	С	0.15	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
016217034	MFR-L	0.19	2	Moderate/Above Moderate
ΤΟΤΑΙ		9.18	123	



Figure 5: MFR parcels with Development Potential in Bridgeport



Figure 6: MFR parcels with Development Potential in June Lake

Infrastructure

Much of the land available for residential development in the unincorporated area requires individual septic systems and wells. Some areas of the county have small community water systems but still require individual septic systems; other areas have community sewer systems but require individual wells. Sufficient capacity in the community water and sewer systems and sufficient groundwater resources and percolation capabilities outside of community water/sewer system areas exist to accommodate the regional housing need allocation.

Antelope Valley	Individual wells and septic systems required.
Bridgeport Valley	Community water within community of Bridgeport and Evans Tract with adequate capacity. Community sewer system within Bridgeport with adequate capacity. Individual systems required elsewhere.
Mono City	Mutual water company supplies water; individual septic systems required.
Virginia Lakes	Mutual water company supplies water; individual septic systems required.
Lee Vining	Community water and sewer system with adequate capacity. Individual systems required in the rest of Mono Basin.
June Lake	Community water and sewer system, currently with adequate capacity. Large developments may be required to make improvements to the water distribution system that is currently inadequate in some areas of the community.
Long Valley	Community sewer system in Crowley; septic systems elsewhere. Mutual water companies in Crowley and Sunny Slopes; individual wells elsewhere.
Wheeler Crest	Mutual water company at Rimrock; individual wells elsewhere. Individual septic system required.
Paradise	Mutual water company at Paradise. Individual septic systems required.

Tri-Valley

Mutual water companies in White Mountain Estates, Osage Ranch; individual wells elsewhere. Individual septic systems required.

Water quality requirements affect both community water and sewer systems and individual homeowners. Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board's (RWQCB) water quality regulations affect the minimum lot size on which development can occur depending on whether community water and/or sewer systems are available; i.e.,

-Community water available, individual septic required – 20,000 square foot minimum lot size required by RQWCB;

-No community systems available, individual wells and septic required -40,000 square foot minimum lot size required by RWQCB; and

-Minimum lot sizes in cluster subdivisions or similar developments not served by a public sewer system may be reduced if density standards for the whole subdivision are not increased above the gross density specified in the designation, provided that all other health requirements are met.

In some areas in the county where individual lots are 7,500 square feet, these requirements make it necessary to have more than one lot to build a house. Some areas of the county also have soils that are not conducive to standard septic system designs. Those areas may require additional septic system improvements that increase the cost of building.

Redevelopment Sites

Mono County has sufficient undeveloped sites available to meet its identified regional housing needs. However, redevelopment potential is most likely in the County's commercial cores – June Lake, Bridgeport, and Lee Vining. The key redevelopment sites have been identified in the community profiles section.

Sites and Zoning that Facilitate Housing for Farmworkers

The Agriculture (AG) designation allows farm labor housing without any type of development permit, other than a building permit. The Scenic Area Agriculture (SAA) designation also allows farm labor housing without any type of development permit, other than a building permit, to the extent the development complies with the Mono Basin National Forest Scenic Area Private Property Development Guidelines and with the Compatibility Determinations for Proposed New Commercial Uses and Developments. Compatibility determinations are based upon recommendations of the U.S. Forest Service.

⁻Community water and sewer available – no minimum lot size established by RWQCB;

Constraints

Non-Governmental Constraints

Physical and Environmental Constraints

There are areas within Mono County that are unavailable for residential development because of site constraints such as natural hazards or environmentally sensitive lands. The high cost of building on these lands, coupled with environmental constraints, in many cases would make them unsuitable for development.

Development in the following areas may be prohibited by the county's General Plan and/or Land Development Regulations or by requirements of other state or federal agencies, may present a hazard to those who choose to build in the area, or may impact valuable resources and require costly mitigation measures:

Remote Locations. Some privately-owned undeveloped land in Mono a. County is located in very remote areas where there is not, nor is there expected to be, demand for development. Reasonable legal access to these lands cannot be developed or acquired, and most of the time the County would not be able to provide the normal, expected, public services of police and fire protection, schools, etc. Most of the land in remote areas is not designated for residential use because of its remoteness. It is generally designated Resource Management or Agriculture and is used either for grazing or crops. Many of these lands are pockets of privatelyowned land surrounded by public lands managed by the U.S. Forest Service or the Bureau of Land Management. In addition, the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, technically a private landowner, owns land throughout the central and southern portion of the county. Most of the land in remote locations would not be developable for other reasons as well, such as hazards associated with the area or environmentally sensitive lands in those areas. The remote location of some private land is generally not a constraint to development since most of the private land base is centered on existing community areas. Additionally, developments are prohibited in certain areas that are not within the service area of a Fire Protection District.

b. *Hazard-Prone Areas.* Mono County currently regulates development in snow avalanche-prone areas as well as in areas identified as Alquist-Priolo Special Studies Zones (fault hazard zones), in other geologically sensitive areas, and in flood plains. Mono County General Plan policies (Safety Element) limit development in identified hazardous areas in order to minimize the risks of those hazards and to protect local communities from unreasonable risks associated with those hazards. General Plan policies also promote land exchanges for those lands to place them in public ownership and make other lands adjacent to community areas available for future community expansion.

Snow avalanche-prone areas are located along the periphery of the communities of Twin Lakes, June Lake and Wheeler Crest. Sufficient other sites are available for development in those communities so that the avalanche-prone areas do not affect development potential significantly.

Alquist-Priolo Special Studies Zones (fault hazard zones) occur throughout the county, many of them outside community areas. General Plan policies consistent with state law limit the intensity of development in seismic and other geologic hazard areas and require applicable development in those areas to provide a geotechnical report assessing the risk and recommending mitigation measures to reduce the risk to acceptable levels. The Building Division, per state building codes, also requires new construction to comply with engineering and design requirements for seismic safety. The impact of fault hazard zones on new development is not significant. Other geologic hazards, such as rockfalls and landslides, are generally associated with seismic activity and are subject to the same development requirements noted above.

Mono County uses the FEMA flood maps to identify areas within the 100-year flood plain. General Plan policies consistent with state and federal regulations limit the intensity of development in the flood plain and regulate the design and placement of structures in the 100-year flood plain. The county's Floodplain Regulations (Mono County Land Development Regulations, Chapter 21) contain standards for construction and for subdivisions with the flood plain. Flooding is a particular concern in the Antelope Valley and the Tri-Valley. Sufficient land exists in community areas that avoidance of flood plains does not significantly affect the County's ability to provide housing.

Residences in areas with high fire hazard often have difficulty obtaining home insurance. The County does not prohibit development based on fire risk.

c. *Soils with Low Permeability Rates.* Many parts of the county are not served by public sewer systems and must rely on septic systems. In some parts of the county, standard septic systems cannot be used because the soils have low permeability rates that prevent effective operation of septic tank systems. This issue is limited and affects only a small number of parcels. Alternative septic system designs are available and, while they may be costlier, they do allow the site to be developed.

d. *Environmentally Sensitive Areas*. Development is regulated in wetland areas, within stream corridors, in sensitive wildlife habitat, and in other environmentally sensitive areas. Environmentally sensitive areas occur throughout the county. Typically, parcels are large enough that the environmentally sensitive area can be avoided, and the parcel can still be utilized for development. Parcels with environmentally sensitive areas usually require CEQA review of any proposed projects; during the CEQA review process, the project will be redesigned to avoid environmental impacts, and mitigation measures will be proposed to minimize impacts that cannot be avoided. Mono County General Plan policies encourage clustering on large parcels outside community areas in order to preserve habitat and open space and avoid and/or minimize environmental impacts.

Economic Constraints

- a. *Cost of Land.* The price of land can be a barrier to construction for some areas of the County. There is no one average cost per acre for land in Mono County because the demand for land and shares of land use designations vary greatly by community area. For example, the average cost per acre in June Lake is over \$600,000 while the price per acre in the agriculture-driven Antelope Valley is less than \$25,000 per square foot. Costs for vacant land may also vary depending on whether community utilities are available to the site and whether infrastructure (access roads, utility lines) is installed on site.
- b. *Cost of Construction*. Construction costs are estimated to range from \$200 to \$300 per square foot for single-family residential construction in the unincorporated area of Mono County. These costs include land, fees, materials, labor and financing. Due to the wide range of land costs, fees and development requirements throughout the county, it is very difficult to estimate a "typical" total development cost for single-family residential development.
- c. *Cost of Infrastructure.* Many of the identified vacant parcels do not have the existing infrastructure to support high density development. The main infrastructure concern for parcels is access to water, both for household use and fire service. Many opportunity sites also lack the required secondary access, which can be costly to develop. The County is exploring partnerships and grant opportunities to improve infrastructure and make identified vacant parcels more development-ready.

Governmental Constraints

Permitted Uses on Residential Land

Mono County's Land Development Regulations allow for a wide range of residential uses in a variety of land use designations. Measures have been taken to promote affordable options across the County, including by-right permitting of manufactured homes (outside June Lake) and accessory dwelling units⁸ in all land uses intended for single family use.

Residential uses are permitted through one of the following processes:

- 1. Permitted outright by ministerial review. Project only requires building permit.
- 2. *Director Review.* Project is approved through the review of the Planning Director, provided it meets development standards and is exempt from CEQA.
- 3. *Conditional Use Permit.* Project is approved through the discretion of the Planning Commission.

⁸ Mono County General Plan, Chapter 16, Accessory Dwelling Units

Table 31: Permitted Residential Uses by Land Use Designation Manufactured Farm home (single Labor Condos. Mobile Single unit: Manufactured Townhomes. Housing/ Transitional/ RV Home Housing Apts (4 or familv **Duplexes.** excluding Trailer Supportive ADU Park Park dwelling Triplexes June Lake) Subdivision more units) Parks Housing AG ✓ 1 1 С \checkmark \checkmark CLM, ✓ CLH ✓ ✓ 1 1 1 ✓ ER \checkmark ✓ \checkmark \checkmark 1 √ √ ✓ MFR L ✓ ✓ 1 1 MFR M ✓ ✓ \checkmark 1 1 ✓ 1 √ 1 MFR H ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 1 ✓ 1 1 MU \checkmark ✓ √ ✓ ✓ ✓ NHP ✓ ✓ 1 1 √ ✓ √ ✓ ✓ ✓ RR RM 1 1 1 ✓ ✓ 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 RMH ✓ √ 1 ✓ SFR ✓ ✓ ✓

A summary of permitted residential uses by land use designation is shown in Table 31 below:

✓ Permitted

- Director Review
- Conditional Use
- Permit

The County will investigate whether permitting procedures are a constraint on the production of units. Specifically, Program 1.6 will monitor the requirement for complexes with four or more units to be approved through a conditional use permit and if it is a constraint on development. The County will also monitor the length of time for each permitting process and whether it has an effect on production.

Emergency shelters are permitted by-right in Public Facilities (PF) designations only. There are currently five vacant PF parcels, totaling six acres and ranging from 0.6 acres to 1.5 acres in size, that are suitable for shelters. The parcels are located in Crowley Lake and Lee Vining, each of which have regular service provided by Eastern Sierra Transit Authority (ESTA). Program 4.6 will explore allowing shelters in multi-family residential zones to provide additional options.

Single-room occupancy units are allowed in MFR-H subject to use permit, assuming the unit is able to meet California Building Code.

Mono County does not restrict the siting of group homes. All land use designations that allow residential development also allow group homes. Mono County has no additional regulations regarding group homes. The County, however, has no existing group homes and has had no

applications for group homes. Due to the limited number of disabled persons in the county and the physical distance between communities, assistance for disabled persons usually occurs on an individual basis.

The demand for short-term rentals is a constraint on the supply of long-term housing. Short-term rentals are allowed on SFR, ER, RR, RMH, and MFR-L subject to Use Permit, if consistent with applicable Area Plan Policies. The allowance of short-term rentals by type (owner and not owner-occupied) vary by community. See Chapter 25 of the General Plan Land Use Element for more information.

Development Standards

The Mono County General Plan imposes development standards in accordance with California Building Code and safety standards. Standards include setbacks, maximum lot coverage, snow storage, maximum density, and parking requirements. Variances are granted in cases of special circumstance where the findings of Chapter 33 of the Land Use Element can be met.

Table 32: Setbacks and Lot Coverage by Land Use Designation			
	Setbacks (front, side, rear; in feet)	Max Lot Coverage	
	Primary: 50, 50, 50; Accessory: 50, 30,		
AG	30	40%	
С	10, 5, 0	70% (60% for Res.)	
CLM, CLH	10, 5, 0	60%	
ER < 1 acre	20, 10, 10	40%	
ER > 1 acre	50, 30, 30	40%	
MFR L < 1 acre	20, 10, 10	40%	
MFR L > 1 acre	30, 30, 30	40%	
MFR M < 1 acre	20, 10, 10	60%	
MFR M > 1 acre	30, 30, 30	60%	
MFR H < 1 acre	20, 10, 10	60%	
MFR H > 1 acre	30, 30 ,30	60%	
MU < 1 acre	10, 5, 0	60-70%	
MU > 1 acre	30, 30, 30	60-70%	
NHP	30, 30, 30	10% structures; 5% access	
RR	50, 30, 30	40%	
RM	50, 30, 30	5%	
RMH < 1 acre	20, 10, 10	40%	
RMH > 1 acre	30, 30, 30	40%	
SFR < 1 acre	20, 10, 10	40%	
SFR > 1 acre	30, 30, 30	40%	

*Parking: 2 spaces per unit for all residential projects. Tandem parking allowed only on SFR and for ADUs.

Snow storage is based on the amount of permeable area for the project and varies based on the flat roof snow load standard of each community. Snow storage for multi-family projects is based on the following standards:

<u>Flat Roof Snov</u>	v Load	Snow Storage %
55 psf or less	=	25%
55-60 psf	=	40%
60-95 psf	=	55%
95+ psf	=	65%

Density

Table 33: Density o	n Residential LUDs		
	LUD	Allowed Density	Density on Current Development (Units per Acre)
Single Family	SFR	1 unit + 1 ADU	2.58
	ER	1 unit + 1 ADU	0.41
	RR	1 unit + 1 ADU	0.12
	RMH	1 unit + 1 ADU	0.76
Multi-Family	MFR-L	11.6 units/acre	9.17 (All MFR)
	MFR-M, MFR-H	15 units/acre	

Land Use Requirements Imposed by Other Agencies

A number of other agencies impose land use controls that affect development in Mono County. These regulations may constrain development by affecting the location and/or cost of development. Utilities are separate entities from Mono County, with separate funding and regulations.

Southern California Edison (SCE) has 115 kv transmission power lines that run through portions of Crowley Lake, June Lake, and Lee Vining. Development is prohibited within a 70-foot easement under the power lines. SCE works directly with the developer or builder to resolve potential conflicts.

Densities over one dwelling unit per acre are dependent on the availability of community water and sewer services. The Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) regulates the placement of septic systems through the Basin Plan. Recent changes in the RWQCB's water quality regulations have set a maximum of two dwelling units per acre in areas that have community water systems, but which require individual septic systems. As a result, the minimum lot size in such situations is slightly over 20,000 square feet. The minimum lot size when both individual septic and water systems are required is 40,000 square feet. In some areas in the county where individual lots are 7,500 square feet or smaller, these requirements essentially make it necessary to have more than one lot to build a house. As a result, the maximum allowable buildout is unlikely to occur on parcels with designations that allow multifamily residential development without community water and sewer services.

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers regulates development in wetland areas. All development in wetland areas will be reviewed by the Corps and may require a permit. Wetland areas occur throughout the unincorporated area, both within and outside community areas.

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) reviews development proposals in Mono County, including subdivisions and land divisions, and may require changes to the project or conditions of approval if the project will affect wildlife resources. For projects that will affect streams, the CDFW requires a Stream Alteration Permit. The CDFW imposes a fee for review of environmental documents (Negative Declarations or EIRs) unless County decision-makers determine that the project will have a de minimis effect on wildlife or wildlife habitat.

Lack of Subsidies for Rural Projects

The majority of grants, incentives, and subsidies in the State of California are geared toward larger projects. Due to Mono County's sparse population, it is not realistic for communities to attract large development proposals. Through historical trends and analysis of current proposals and available land, the County anticipates that multi-family developments will be in the four to eight unit range. However, it is difficult to capture funding for infrastructure or income restriction mechanisms for projects in this range. Sources of funding on smaller developments are needed for new construction, as well as existing ownership and rental units.

Codes and Enforcement

The Mono County Building Division currently enforces the following codes:

- a. 2016 California Administrative Code
- b. 2016 California Building Code
- c. 2016 California Electrical Code
- d. 2016 California Mechanical Code
- e. 2016 California Plumbing Code
- f. 2016 California Energy Code
- g. 2016 California Historical Building Code
- h. 2016 California Fire Code
- i. 2016 California Referenced Standards Code
- j. 2016 California Residential Code
- k. 2016 Green Building Code

Development must also comply with seismic, wind, soils, energy conservation, and sound transmission control standards, which have been established on a countywide basis. Snow-load requirements vary depending on the area; they range from 119 pounds per square foot in June Lake to 38 pounds per square foot in Chalfant Valley.

All new development in unincorporated Mono County, and major remodeling, such as home additions, must comply with Title 24 of the California Administrative Energy Code and the 2016 California Green Building Code. Title 24 implements energy efficiency standards relating to wall and ceiling insulation, thermal mass, and window-to-floor area ratios designed to reduce heat loss and energy consumption.

GROUND SNOW LOADpg PSF - ROOF SNOW LOADpf CONVERSION TABLE			
HIGH DESERT LOCATIONS	ELEVATION	GROUND SNOW LOADpg (psf)	FLAT ROOF SNOW LOAD $p_f = (.7)(0.9^{*} \text{ or } 1.0=C_{\circ})(1.1=C_{t})(1.0=I)p_{g}$ = (psf)
Chalfant Valley*	4,200 ft	55 psf	38 psf
Hammil Valley*	4,500 ft	55 psf	38 psf
Paradise*	5,000 ft	55 psf	38 psf
Topaz*	5,000 ft	55 psf	38 psf
Coleville*	5,100 ft	55 psf	38 psf
Benton*	5,400 ft	55 psf	38 psf
Walker*	5,400 ft	55 psf	38 psf
Bridgeport	6,470 ft	65 psf	50 psf
Mono City	6,899 ft	75 psf	58 psf
Long Valley (east of US 395)	7,000 ft	80 psf	62 psf
Tom's Place	7,000 ft	80 psf	62 psf
MOUNTAIN AREA LOCATIONS	ELEVATION	GROUND SNOW LOADpg (psf)	FLAT ROOF SNOW LOAD pf =(.7)(1.0=C_0)(1.1=C_t)(1.0=I)pg = (psf)
Swall Meadows	6,400	100 psf	77 psf
Sonora Junction	6,500	155 psf	119 psf
Rancheria Estates	6,600	105 psf	81 psf
Pickel Meadow	6,800	155 psf	119 psf
Lee Vining	6,800	120 psf	92 psf
Long Valley (west of US 395)	7,000	125 psf	96 psf
Lundy Lake (lower)	7,000	150 psf	116 psf
Crowley Lake	7,000	125 psf	96 psf
Bald Mountain/Arcularius	7,100	150 psf	116 psf
Twin Lakes	7,200	140 psf	109 psf
Devil's Gate	7,400	155 psf	119 psf
Crestview	7,500	150 psf	116 psf
Swauger Creek	7,500	150 psf	116 psf
Convict Lake	7,580	155 psf	119 psf
June Lake	7,600	155 psf	119 psf
Lundy Lake (upper)	8,000	285 psf	220 psf
Virginia Lakes	9,600	285 psf	220 psf

Snow Load Standards

The County has an ongoing code compliance program to ensure compliance with County Code, including the Mono County Land Development Regulations, and the codes enforced by the Building Division. The enforcement of these regulations is necessary to protect public health and safety and to provide structurally safe, energy efficient, soundproof housing. The Compliance

Division program is intended to ensure compliance with existing applicable codes; as such, it does not create a constraint to development.

The Building Division inspects development during the construction process. Appointments are scheduled, and inspections occur generally within 24 hours. Since Mono County is a small County, the inspectors are able to communicate with contractors and owner-builders before and during the construction process concerning code requirements. Building inspections are conducted in a timely manner and are not a constraint to development.

Fees and Exactions

Fees are intended to cover the actual cost of services rendered. While they increase the cost of housing, they are not a constraint to development. The County has streamlined its permit processing in order to expedite the development process and minimize the fees involved in a project.

Total fees for a typical single-family and multifamily development will vary depending on the location of the project. Fire departments and school districts throughout the county charge different impact fees for development. Fees for an encroachment permit will vary depending on whether the property abuts a County road or a state highway. In addition, fees for sewer and water services will vary depending on whether the project is located in an area served by community sewer and water systems or whether it will require an individual well permit and septic system permit. Permit fees for septic systems vary depending on the type of system required.

Estimated initial fees for a typical 2,000-square foot single-family residence are shown below. Typical fees for a multifamily residential unit will be approximately 75% of the cost for a single-family residential unit.

Estimated Total Fees for a Typical Single-Family Residence

Assumptions: 2,000 square feet of habitable space in Chalfant; 400 square feet of garage; 100 square feet of uncovered deck. The unit requires an individual well permit and septic system permit. The unit encroaches on a County road.

Building permit fees	\$4,267.91
Planning plan check	\$250.00
Fire District (Chalfant)	\$1,991.00
School District (Eastern Sierra)	\$3,120.00*
Encroachment Permit	\$800.00
Well Permit	\$644.00
Septic Permit	\$644.00
Total Fees	\$11,716.91

*School District fees collected by the County, but set by the School District Board.

Processing

Table 18 shows typical processing times for various permit procedures. Individual single-family residential development that requires only a building permit or a Director Review permit takes four to six weeks, assuming a complete submittal and responsive applicant. Larger projects, such as subdivisions, take longer, depending on the level of CEQA review required, the responsiveness of project proponents, community controversy, and whether the project requires permits from other state or federal agencies. Accommodations for applicants with special needs are made on an individual basis.

All development projects are first reviewed by staff. Projects requiring discretionary approval from the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors are first processed by staff and then presented to the appropriate entity for approval. Projects are reviewed for their compliance with the Mono County General Plan, the Mono County Code, and applicable state and federal laws.

The standards of decision making are well established and not burdensome. In issuing a ministerial Director Review permit, the director must find that all of the following are true (Mono County Land Development Regulations, Chapter 31):

- A. All applicable provisions of Land Use Designations and Land Development Regulations are complied with, and the site of the proposed use is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the use and to accommodate all yards, walls and fences, parking, loading, landscaping and other required features.
- B. The site for the proposed use relates to streets and highways adequate in width and type to carry the quantity and kind of traffic generated by the proposed use.
- C. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or improvements in the area in which the property is located.
- D. The proposed use is consistent with the map and text of this General Plan and any applicable area plan.
- E. That the improvements as indicated on the development plan are consistent with all adopted standards and policies as set forth in the Land Development Regulations, this General Plan and any applicable area plan.
- F. That the project is exempt from CEQA.

Use permits may be granted by the Planning Commission only when all of the following findings can be made in the affirmative (Mono County Land Development Regulations, Chapter 32):

A. All applicable provisions of the Land Use Designations and Land Development Regulations are complied with, and the site of the proposed use is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the use and to accommodate all yards, walls and fences, parking, loading, landscaping and other required features.

- B. The site for the proposed use relates to streets and highways adequate in width and type to carry the quantity and kind of traffic generated by the proposed use.
- C. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or improvements in the area in which the property is located.
- D. The proposed use is consistent with the map and text of this General Plan and any applicable area plan.

Persons with Disabilities

Accommodations are made for persons with disabilities, in accordance with the California Building Code. For example, new multi-family housing must also be built so that: 1) the public and common use portions of such units are readily accessible and usable by persons with disabilities; 2) doors allowing passage into and within such units can accommodate wheelchairs; and 3) all units contain adaptive design features. The County has a Certified Access Specialist on staff.

The County will continue to make accommodations during the permitting process for persons with disabilities, including providing exceptions for land-use regulations when appropriate (Program 4.2).

The County has analyzed Health and Safety Code sections 1267.8, 1267.9, and 1267.16 related to standards for an intermediate care facility/developmentally disabled habilitative or an intermediate care facility/developmentally disabled—nursing or congregate living health facility. The General Plan contains a policy to regulate the placement of group homes, juvenile facilities, schools and similar facilities that exceed state intensity thresholds, and a conditional use permit is required for group homes in the Public Facilities Land Use Designation. Group homes are not defined and the General Plan does not specifically reference the facilities in the Health and Safety Code; however, these facilities could be interpreted as group homes. Program 4.8 was developed to clarify General Plan regulations regarding the referenced facilities and ensure statutory requirements of the Health and Safety code are met.

Definition of a Family

The County does not define a "family" and a definition is not required in the Housing Element.

Table 34: Processing Times and Rates

Type of Permit	Deposit	Estimated Staff Hours to Process	Processing Rate
Appeal	\$495	10	\$99/hr
Building Permit Plan Check: small	\$99	1	\$99/hr
Building Permit Plan Check: large	\$250	2.5	\$99/hr
Categorical Exemption	\$99	1	\$99/hr
Certificate of Compliance	\$495	15	\$99/hr
Commission Interpretation	\$495	10	\$99/hr
Design Review (discretionary permit)	\$495	1	\$99/hr
Director Review	\$495	10	\$99/hr
Environmental Impact Report	\$495	200	\$99/hr
General Plan Amendment	\$495	30	\$99/hr
Groundwater Transfer/Extraction	\$495	18	\$99/hr
Home Occupation, expanded	\$495	25	\$99/hr
Hydrological Studies	\$495	5	\$99/hr
Lot Line Adjustment	\$495	10	\$99/hr
Lot Merger	\$495	8	\$99/hr
Map Extension	\$495	10	\$99/hr
Mining Operations Permit	\$495	30	\$99/hr
Negative Declaration	\$495	75	\$99/hr
Prior Environmental (15183)	\$495	20	\$99/hr
Parcel Map: Tentative	\$495	53	\$99/hr
Modification	\$495	33	\$99/hr
Reclamation Plan	\$495	30	\$99/hr
Specific Plan	\$495	100	\$99/hr
Time Shares	\$495	18	\$99/hr
Tract Map: Tentative	\$495	68	\$99/hr
Modification	\$495	39	\$99/hr
Use Permit	\$495	30	\$99/hr
Use Permit Modification	\$495	15	\$99/hr
Variance	\$495	20	\$99/hr

SECTION 3 | Progress Report for 2014 Goals

As part of the housing element update, Mono County is required to provide a progress report for programs from the previous update. Under each program, a description of progress and a determination on whether the program is continued, adjusted, or eliminated for the upcoming cycle is given. Programs and policies are presented in the order documented by the 2014 Update.

a. PROVISION OF ADEQUATE SITES

Goal	Plan for adequate sites and facilities to support future housing needs.
Policy 1	Facilitate the provision of housing in unincorporated communities to meet local housing demand.
Policy 2	Ensure that adequate infrastructure exists or will be provided to support future housing development.
Policy 3	Identify potential housing sites, including seasonal housing units on public lands, agency employee housing (USFS, BLM, Caltrans, LADWP and Mono County), and under-utilized sites.
Policy 4	Seek adequate sites for housing in Mono County and the Eastern Sierra through coordination with other public agencies (i.e., Town of Mammoth Lakes, Inyo County, USFS, BLM, Caltrans, LADWP, DFG, State Parks and Marine Corps), private concerns, nonprofit entities and tribal governments.
Policy 5	Plan for adequate sites and facilities to be available for housing all segments of the population, including the homeless; citizens in need of short-term emergency shelter housing (e.g., victims of natural hazard occurrences or accidents and temporarily homeless); and seasonal workers, including farm workers and ski industry workers.

- Policy 6 Utilize a Regional Housing Authority or similar entity to develop, implement and manage housing programs in Mono County and the Eastern Sierra.
- Policy 7 Consistent with the Land Use Element designate adequate sites for a variety of residential development in each community to help establish self-sufficient communities that balance job locations with housing; i.e., develop a sufficient year-round residential population in communities to support local schools, commercial services, and other services.

Program 1:1 Through the CPT Land Tenure Subcommittee, maintain the Land Tenure master plan and Pursue land exchanges of existing seasonal housing units on public lands into private ownership so those units may become available for local year-round housing
Responsible Agencies: CDD, Private Land Owners, USFS
Timeframe: Ongoing
Progress: The CPT Land Tenure Subcommittee continues to meet, but not on a regular, scheduled basis. Transactions are driven by the private landowner. The County acts solely as a facilitator.
Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:2 Inventory existing and/or potential agency housing areas (Mono County, Town of Mammoth Lakes, Southern Mono Hospital District, Mammoth Unified School District, USFS, BLM, Caltrans, LADWP, etc.) and work with agencies to assess where additional housing might be made available. Responsible Agencies: CDD and all Land Tenure subcommittee partner agencies. Timeframe: 2014, 2019
Progress: Inventory of agency housing areas completed as part of the 2014 and 2019 Housing Element updates. Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:3 Work with public agencies (USFS, BLM, Caltrans, LADWP, etc.) to consolidate services and land uses (e.g., road shops) in order to free up land for housing, particularly affordable housing. Consistent with land use policies, encourage agencies to locate their housing within or adjacent to existing communities to facilitate sustainable community growth. Work to incorporate such policies into agency planning documents.

> Responsible Agencies: CDD and all Land Tenure subcommittee partner agencies. Timeframe: Ongoing

> **Progress:** Provided comments on agency planning documents to ensure inclusion of consistent housing policies, including the encouragement of

development adjacent to existing communities.

Adjustments: County does not plan to work with public agencies to consolidate services and free up land but will continue to provide comment on agency documents to promote land use policies and facilitate sustainable growth.

Program 1:4 Examine the inventory of County-owned land for potential housing sites (e.g., road shop sites, Conway Ranch, Sheriff Substation, etc.).

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Housing Authority

Timeframe: 2014 - Ongoing

Progress: Conway Ranch plan repealed, Sheriff Substation has issues associated with water quality, and road shop sites have challenges related to utility capacity. **Adjustments**: County will continue to evaluate inventory on a periodic basis.

Program 1:5 Study the possibility of acquiring/exchanging public lands surrounding existing community areas for community expansion purposes and/or related

infrastructure development, particularly in those areas designated in the Land Use Element for community expansion. Based on the results of these studies, take necessary actions to promote the exchange of lands and encourage the development of a variety of housing types, including multifamily for lowerincome households in the acquisition/exchange of public lands.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, BLM, USFS, LADWP

Timeframe: 2014-2019

Progress: County has studied opportunities for exchanging public lands for community expansion, but potential opportunities are not feasible due to several factors including natural hazards and land ownership circumstances. The County is focused on promoting housing within existing community sites.

Adjustments: Program will be continued as part of CPT Land Tenure subcommittee.

Program 1:6 Implement policies in the Land Use Element pertaining to the provision of services and the coordination of development with service capability. Work with local service providers (public utility districts, fire protection districts, gas/electric power providers, telephone/communications systems providers, etc.) to ensure that adequate services are or will be available for housing development.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: The Community Development Department requires a will-serve letter from local service providers for relevant projects and coordinates with providers through various processes, including Use Permits and Environmental Review documents.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:7 Encourage and assist special districts and private service providers (mutual water companies etc.) to secure grants to improve and expand sewer and water capabilities and fire protection services. The County's participation will entail aiding districts in the preparation of grant applications and in compliance with environmental requirements.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, LAFCO

Timeframe: 2014-Ongoing

Progress: County sends and supports grant opportunities as they are available. Examples include Cal Fire grant, the Community Planning Assistance for Wildfire (CPAW) grant, and funding opportunities with Integrated Regional Water Management.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:8 The County has identified its community centers as emergency. Monitor the need for permanent emergency shelters. Apply for emergency housing funds available from the Department of Housing and Community Development or other state or federal agencies when it is determined that there is an unmet need for emergency housing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, PW (Facilities) Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: Identified shelters were successfully used during the Round Fire in 2015. Temporary housing needs were absorbed by the communities. The County will continue to use identified shelters during times of emergency.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:9 Ensure that the county's Multi-Hazard Functional Plan, prepared by the county's Office of Emergency Services, remains up to date. The Multi-Hazard Functional Plan contains policies and procedures for housing victims of natural hazards or accidents.

Responsible Agencies: Office of Emergency Services

Timeframe: Updated periodically

Progress: Adoption of the 2019 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (June 2019).

Adjustments: The Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan does not include policies for housing victims of natural hazards. The plan will continue to be updated as needed.

Program 1:10 Continue to provide short-term housing for homeless persons and to monitor the need to increase services for homeless persons, including short term housing for victims of domestic violence.

Responsible Agencies: IMACA, Social Services, Wild Iris Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: Monitoring occurs through Social Services. **Adjustments**: Program will continue.

Program 1:11 Implement housing policies contained in area plans, such as the workforce housing and density bonus policies of the June Lake Area Plan.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: County implements housing policies relevant to each community's area plan. No projects have triggered workforce housing and density bonus policies in the most recent cycle.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:12 Consistent with the Land Use Element, continue to require specific plans for large-scale development within community expansion areas. Specific plans allow for a variety of development and can streamline the development process.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: No new specific plans have been adopted since 2014. White Mountain Estates provides an example of units being successfully built on an enacted specific

plan. The Tioga Inn specific plan is undergoing an amendment to allow for increased residential use is and anticipated within the next cycle. **Adjustments:** Program will continue.

Program 1:13 In conformance with state law, continue to permit manufactured housing on all parcels designated for conventional single-family residences.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: Manufactured housing has been permitted on parcels designated for conventional single-family residences, including relaxed design standards (i.e. minimum width) subject to approval from local Regional Planning Advisory Committees.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:14 Continue to permit mobile-home parks on all land planned and designated for residential land use, in conformance with state law. This also applies to mobilehome developments intended for sale as mobile-home condos or cooperative parks, or as mobile-home planned unit developments.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: No mobile-home developments were proposed in the County during the most recent cycle.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:15 Continue to implement the land development regulations regarding

Manufactured Housing Subdivisions. These regulations provide for a higher density of single-family development and a relaxation of development standards.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: No manufactured housing subdivisions in the County during the most recent cycle.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:16 Support a balance of jobs and housing in Mono County communities and the associated reduction in resident commute times by facilitating community job growth through economic development programs. Pursue grant funding for economic development projects that grow jobs and healthy communities capable of supporting more resident housing.

Responsible Agencies: ED, CDD, Housing Authority Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: The County established an economic development website, and approved cannabis and clarified short-term rental policies which may help diversify business. The County has also participated in Main Street planning processes for the communities of Bridgeport and Lee Vining in order to support business in commercial cores.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:17 Implement provisions in the General Plan and Subdivision Ordinance that permit smaller minimum lot sizes where consistent with area plans and available infrastructure.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: Smaller minimum lot sizes are permitted through lot splits and subdivision applications when consistent with the community's area plan. Infrastructure is often a limiting factor in creating smaller lots and higher density. **Adjustments**: Program will continue.

Program 1:18 Re-examine residential limitations in area plans where new sewer, water or other infrastructure requirements, such as fire-flow requirements, allow for greater single-family densities. Consider amending the General Plan and area plans to allow for higher single-family densities in these areas.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, LAFCO

Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: Infrastructure limitations prevent greater single-family densities.

Adjustments: Continue to re-visit limitations as updates in infrastructure occur.

Program 1:19 Continue to allow for mixed-use development as a method of increasing the land base available for housing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: No mixed-use projects during most recent cycle. **Adjustments**: Program will continue.

Program 1:20 Continue to allow for residential development in the commercial land use designation to more efficiently and economically utilize the county's limited land base for housing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: Residential development permitted on commercial land uses during most recent cycle with building permit. **Adjustments:** Program will continue.

Program 1:21 Consider amending the General Plan and subdivision ordinance to allow for greater flexibility in subdivision design to encourage clustering, zero lot line and common-wall developments, and other residential design strategies that allow for development at the gross allowable density while preserving sensitive site features. Responsible Agencies: CDD, PW

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: Projects approved with reduction in standards when building code can be met. Clustering has been used as a strategy for agriculture preservation in Antelope Valley.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:22 Examine the potential of allowing additional densities in existing specific plan areas within or adjacent to communities to better utilize available infrastructure and limited private land base.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: Site analysis contained within the Housing Element identifies specific targeted parcels appropriate for expansion or creation of higher density. The Tioga Inn Specific Plan is in the process of being amended to create higher density potential.

Adjustments: Continue to evaluate opportunities for higher density and possible expansion of specific plans.

Program 1:23 Consider establishing minimum allowable densities (in addition to retaining maximum density restrictions) in appropriate community areas to encourage resident housing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: No projects have been proposed where establishing minimum allowable densities is appropriate. Infrastructure is typically the limiting factor.

Adjustments: Continue to consider implementation of minimum densities when feasible.

Program 1:24 Continue development credit programs in agricultural valleys such as Bridgeport and Hammil that promote the retention of large agricultural parcels for farming purposes by requiring clustered residential development on smaller parcels.

Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: No projects have utilized development credit program in most recent cycle.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 1:25 Develop and implement a web-based program to connect second-home owners with those needing seasonal housing and consider methods of encouraging second-home owners to make vacation units available for resident use or seasonal employee housing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, IT

Timeframe: 2014-Ongoing

Progress: Community Development has updated regulations to clarify the intent and requirements for second-home owners seeking to rent their residence.

Adjustments: The County will continue to explore a web-based program.

Program 1:26 Continue to utilize the Director Review permit process (ministerial permit process) to allow multifamily in multifamily designations and designations such as MFR-M.

Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: No such projects during the most recent cycle. **Adjustments:** Program will continue

Program 1:27 In compliance with Government Code Section 65583(a)(4), allow emergency shelters in at least one land use designation without a use permit or other discretionary permit. Amend the General Plan Land Use Element to a) include a definition of Emergency Shelter; b) allow emergency shelters outright in the multi-family land designations (such as MFR); and c) stipulate that emergency shelters will only be subject to the same development and management standards that apply to other allowed uses with these designations. Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: 2014-2019

Progress: Emergency Shelters are allowed by-right in Public Facility (PF) designations.

Adjustments: Examine opportunities on other land use designations during upcoming housing element cycle.

b. HOUSING FOR LOW AND MODERATE INCOMES

- Goal Consistent with state requirements, pursue creative, economical and sustainable ways to house low- and moderate-income groups.
- Policy 1 Facilitate the provision of affordable housing to meet the needs of all economic segments and special housing groups.
- Policy 2 Plan for a sufficient number of affordable/employee housing units, including affordable family sized units to meet resident needs in each community.
- Policy 3 Increase the housing stock to provide for affordable/employee housing units by promoting the use of existing recreational second-home units for permanent residents.
- Policy 4 Promote a jobs/housing balance by awarding residents employed in their community preferential access to community housing programs, such housing purchases or rentals in that community.
- Policy 5 Require new development projects to provide their fair share of affordable housing units an amount sufficient to accommodate the affordable housing demand created by the development project. Refine and continue use of inclusionary housing requirements to reflect a fair share contribution of units, in-lieu fees, land, etc. Coordinate regional housing mitigation and fee impact programs with those of the Town of Mammoth Lakes.

- Policy 6 Pursue a variety of techniques, such as equity sharing, deed restrictions, and public or nonprofit ownership of affordable housing units in order to maintain the affordability of those units.
- Policy 7 Develop a range of approaches to affordable housing that address rental units, home ownership and alternative approaches to affordable housing, such as:
 - a threshold fund that provides zero interest security deposit loans for tenants;
 - apartments for fixed-income seniors;
 - a community land trust used to acquire land for housing;
 - sweat-equity programs that enable first-time buyers to contribute their time/labor toward the purchase of a home;
 - co-housing for income qualified buyers;
 - deed restrictions;
 - energy efficient designs; and
 - "share a house" programs designed to ease the burden of housing costs for residents, including seniors and disabled.
- Policy 8 Work to develop a variety of affordable housing unit types within community areas.
- Policy 9 Based upon state regional housing need allocations, assign proportionate housing targets to unincorporated communities. Assist each community in meeting these targets and providing for its fair share of the unincorporated housing need.

Program 2:1 The Board of Supervisors shall award density bonuses for projects incorporating affordable housing consistent with the Mono County Housing Mitigation Requirements (Chapter 15.40, Mono County Code). Consider revising and adopted new HMO.

Responsible Agencies: BOS, CDD Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: The Housing Mitigation Ordinance (HMO) was suspended for the entirety of the cycle. **Adjustments**: Consider revising and adopting a new HMO. Award density bonuses when consistent with state law.

Program 2:2 The Board of Supervisors may reduce or waive development processing fees for qualifying affordable housing projects in order to facilitate processing. County staff will identify other agencies/districts with fees related to residential construction and will determine if those agencies waive or reduce fees for extremely low, low- and moderate-income housing units. Staff will then work with applicable agencies to promote a reduction or waiving of fees for extremely low, low- and moderate-income housing projects. Responsible Agencies: BOS, CDD Timeframe: Ongoing Progress: No qualifying projects during the cycle. Adjustments: Fee waivers and reductions for qualifying projects will continue to be analyzed.

Program 2:3 Continue to allow secondary housing units in single-family residential areas as provided by state law and Chapter 16 of the Mono County Land Development Regulations.

Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing.

Progress: Nine accessory dwelling units were permitted and built during the cycle. **Adjustments**: Continue the program. Secondary housing units now referred to as accessory dwelling units (ADUs).

Program 2:4 The County shall not impose requirements for housing construction that increase housing costs other than those mandated by state law or those determined necessary to protect the health, welfare and safety of the residents of the county. Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: No new requirements imposed during cycle that increase housing costs. **Adjustments**: Program will continue.

Program 2:5Maintain up-to-date information on federal and state housing-related
programs and funding opportunities.
Responsible Agencies: Housing Authority, MLH, IT
Timeframe: Ongoing
Progress: Website maintained with housing programs and funding opportunities.
Adjustments: Make more frequent updates to the database.

Program 2:6 The Mono County Housing Authority, in cooperation with local social service agencies including IMACA and Mammoth Lakes Housing, Inc., shall participate in and coordinate housing programs designed to ease the burden of housing costs for residents, including seniors and disabled, including persons with developmental disabilities. Responsible Agencies: Housing Authority, MLH, IMACA Timeframe: Ongoing Progress: Successful housing programs include the rehabilitation grant, revolving loan fund, and first-time homebuyer loan.

Adjustments: Rehabilitation grant is not funded for the next cycle. Other programs will continue.

Program 2:7During the permit review process, encourage housing designs and site plans
that capitalize on solar heating and cooling advantages to reduce utility costs.
Responsible Agencies: CDD
Timeframe: Ongoing
Progress: Projects evaluated through plan check review of Title 24.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 2:8 Consider allowing an increase in density for those projects built for rental purposes in exchange for an agreement to retain rental units at an affordable price in perpetuity.

Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: No projects during the cycle. **Adjustments**: Program will continue.

Program 2:9 Development projects and building permits shall comply with the Mono County Housing Requirements (Mono County Code 15.40), which requires development projects to include extremely low, low- and moderate-income housing. The continued affordability of these units shall be assured through enforceable documents/deed restrictions that flow with the sale or ownership transference of the property. Smaller projects shall contribute their fair share via in-lieu housing mitigation fees or other comparable mechanisms. The majority of housing units required by this program must be appropriate for families; i.e., not dormitory-style units, and must be reserved for families/households employed in the local economy.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing, HMO suspended

Progress: HMO is suspended. If a project has a significant employee impact, adequate housing must be provided, as per General Plan Policy 1.D.4. No projects during the cycle had significant employee generation.

Adjustments: Program 2:9 will be combined with Program 2:10, and re-worded to reflect Policy 1.D.4 rather than the suspended HMO.

Program 2:10 Implement housing impact fees and other applicable mitigation strategies based on recommendations from fee impact studies that document the fair share impact of new development on the limited housing supply. Coordinate regional housing mitigation and fee impact programs with those of the Town of Mammoth Lakes.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Housing Authority

Timeframe: Dependent on HMO

Progress: HMO is suspended.

Adjustments: Program will continue if HMO is re-adopted. Program 2:10 will be combined with Program 2:9.

- Program 2:12 Through collaboration with a regional housing authority or similar entity, develop a range of extremely low, low and moderate income housing programs that address rental units, home ownership and alternative approaches to affordable housing, such as:
 - a threshold fund that provides zero interest security deposit loans for tenants;

- apartments for fixed-income seniors;
- a community land trust used to acquire land for housing;
- sweat-equity programs that enable first-time buyers to contribute their time/labor toward the purchase of a home;
- co-housing for income qualified buyers;
- deed restrictions; and
- energy-efficient designs and prescriptive designs.
- Responsible Agencies:

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: There is no regional housing authority. Successful relevant programs include first time homebuyer loan, revolving loan fund, and potential deed restrictions.

Adjustments: First time homebuyer loan, revolving loan fund, and deed restrictions will continue as available programs. Other approaches listed in Program 2:12 will be eliminated.

Program 2:13 The County will meet with developers and encourage the development of housing for extremely low, low and moderate income households. The County will maintain an inventory of suitable sites, conduct preapplication meetings to facilitate development, provide technical assistance, support appropriate funding applications and offer regulatory incentives and concessions to contribute to the feasibility of development of housing for extremely low, low and moderate income households. The inventory of suitable sites will utilize a variety of factors to determine site suitability, including current and projected population figures, economic conditions, transportation systems, the potential for rehabilitation, and the availability of utilities and infrastructure.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: County offers pre-application meetings for all development applications. The Land Development Technical Advisory Committee meets regularly and provides a forum for developers to discuss their project with multiple departments concurrently.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 2:14 Review and revise the Housing Mitigation Requirements (Mono County Code, Chapter 15.40) to ensure that they remain effective and equitable in today's housing market.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Housing Authority Timeframe: 2015, Ongoing **Progress**: Reviewed, but BOS did not adopt. **Adjustments**: Review and revisit adoption.

c. PROGRAMS TO ADDRESS GOVERNMENTAL CONSTRAINTS

Goal Increase housing opportunities throughout the county, particularly in community areas by limiting governmental constraints on housing development.

- Policy 1 Revise the Land Development Regulations of the General Plan to allow for greater flexibility in housing development in communities by substituting performance standards/criteria for rigid development standards where practical.
- Policy 2 Revise the county's Subdivision Ordinance to provide greater flexibility in the division of land for a variety of housing types and to ensure consistency with the General Plan.
- Program 3:1 Review and consider revising development standards to provide for greater regulatory flexibility that promotes resident housing development opportunities. Issues and standards to review include, but are not limited to:
 - parking requirements, particularly in June Lake and older central business districts;
 - snow storage requirements;
 - allowing smaller minimum lot sizes where appropriate for affordability;
 - broader application of the county's Manufactured Housing Subdivision provisions, which allows for lots as small as 4,000 square feet; and
 - establishing performance criteria as a substitute for some existing inflexible regulations for residential development.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: 2014-2015

Progress: Parking requirements have been reduced, including reducing the required spaces for single family residential in June Lake from three to two and relaxing parking standards for businesses located in identified commercial cores. An amendment to the General Plan in 2019 allows for smaller minimum lot sizes consistent with density standards on multi-family residential parcels. Zero lot line development is available when building code can be met.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 3:2 Consider revising the Land Development Regulations to clarify the use of manufactured housing, including requirements in non-residential land use designations, minimum standards for farm labor housing use, and the ability to propose manufactured housing subdivisions within additional land use designations.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: 2014

Progress: County has not explored program during the cycle.

Adjustments: Eliminate program. The County aims to prevent barriers for housing and does not support introducing additional standards for farm labor housing or manufactured homes.

Program 3:3 Conduct preapplication conferences with project proponents to assist them in understanding permit procedures and to resolve potential application difficulties early in the review process. Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: County offers pre-application meetings for all development applications. The Land Development Technical Advisory Committee meets regularly and provides a forum for developers to discuss their project with multiple departments concurrently.

Adjustments: Combine with Program 2:13.

Program 3:4 Review permit-processing procedures to ensure streamlining of the permit process. Review and revise application packets, as needed, to ensure that they are comprehensive, clear and easy to use. Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing Progress: Permit-processing procedures are reviewed on a continual basis for efficiency, clarity, and comprehensiveness. Adjustments: Program will continue

Program 3:5 Amend the Land Development Regulations to provide a procedure for handling requests for reasonable accommodations made pursuant to state and federal fair housing laws. Responsible Agencies: CDD, BOS

Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: Requests may be accommodated upon compliance with California Building Code. **Adjustments**: Eliminate program. Separate ordinance deemed unnecessary.

d. CONSERVATION AND REHABILITATION

- Goal Ensure the supply of safe, decent, sound housing for all residents.
- Policy 1 Promote energy conservation in all residential neighborhoods.
- Policy 2 Promote public awareness of the need for energy conservation.
- Policy 3 Support development of programs and policies that achieve a high level of energy conservation in all new and rehabilitated housing units.
- Policy 4 Ensure that housing for all residents is safe and sound.
- Policy 5 Maintain the existing affordable housing stock through rehabilitation, replacement and conservation.
- Program 4:1 Continue to implement General Plan policies concerning the use of alternative energy sources (active and passive solar, etc.) in the development, rehabilitation, and replacement of housing units, including enforcement of Title 24 of the California Energy Commission Regulations. Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: Over \$25,000 in fees were waived for photovoltaic systems during the cycle.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 4:2 Support the continuation of home weatherization programs offered by state agencies, utility companies and other groups.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: Information on home weatherization programs is distributed when gathered.

Adjustments: Continue the program and actively pursue additional funding sources for home weatherization. Combine Program 4:2 with Program 4:3.

Program 4:3 Make information available to homeowners and renters regarding weatherization and other programs that may assist in maintaining the affordability of housing units.

Responsible Agencies: CDD

Timeframe: Ongoing.

Progress: Information on home weatherization programs is distributed when gathered.

Adjustments: Combine Program 4:3 with Program 4:2.

Program 4:4 Periodically update the housing conditions survey to identify areas in Mono County that would benefit from rehabilitation.

Responsible Agencies: CDD (Building Division) Timeframe: 2017 **Progress**: Survey updated through Housing Needs Assessment in 2017. **Adjustments:** Update again during next cycle.

Program 4:5 Continue to participate in the state's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program for rehabilitation of owner-occupied housing units. The County's goal is to rehabilitate five units during the planning period. The County will apply annually for CDBG funds.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Finance

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: There have been four loans issued since 2014 ranging from \$54,000 to \$173,000 for a total valuation of \$551,375. These four loans have leveraged \$742,625 in private financing for a total of \$1,294,000 in real estate investment in unincorporated Mono County. No homes have been lost to foreclosure.

Adjustments: The program has received funding for \$500,000 for the upcoming cycle.

Program 4:6 Provide community education regarding the availability of rehabilitation programs and provide public outreach regarding the availability of rehabilitation programs to low- and very low-income households and other special needs groups in areas identified as needing rehabilitation. Responsible Agencies: CDD, Housing Authority
Timeframe: Ongoing
Progress: Outreach on home loan rehabilitation programs have occurred throughout cycle. Materials are available online and over the counter.
Adjustments: Community education will continue.

Program 4:7 Assist applicants in accessing home rehabilitation loans.

Responsible Agencies: CDD, Finance Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: There have been four loans issued since 2014 ranging from \$54,000 to \$173,000 for a total valuation of \$551,375. **Adjustments**: Continue aiding applicants.

Program 4:8 Consider methods to encourage the private rehabilitation of housing, particularly rental housing.

Responsible Agencies: CDD (Building Division) Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: No outreach efforts encouraging rehabilitation of rental housing during the cycle. **Adjustments**: Consider outreach as rehabilitation programs become available.

Program 4:9 Consider developing an active rental inspection program to ensure rental housing maintenance. This may require a fee to support inspection services. Careful consideration should be given to the fee structure to avoid increasing the costs of rental housing. Also consider a "self-certification program" for landlords who participate in a maintenance/management training program. Apply for and utilize CDBG funds to ensure affordability will not be affected by maintenance activities.

> Responsible Agencies: CDD (Building Division) Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: Program was not used during cycle. Adjustments: Eliminate program, based on lack of community support.

Program 4:10 Encourage the private rehabilitation of housing through enforcement of the property maintenance provisions of the various building codes enforced by the County.

Responsible Agencies: CDD (Code Enforcement)

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: Code enforcement encourages property maintenance in order to meet building code and County standards.

Adjustments: Program will continue.

Program 4:11 Encourage the rehabilitation of existing units over their demolition where practical through such measures as:

- Providing flexibility in administering building code requirements to facilitate the repair, remodel and refurbishment of existing units instead of their demolition;
- Developing a user-friendly process for repair, remodel and refurbishment, including handouts;
- Providing courtesy walk-through field assistance for owners seeking help in determining if demolition is necessary;
- Considering fee reductions and fast-track permit review for qualifying remodels; and
- Conducting outreach to communities and development interests regarding programs available for repair, remodel and refurbishment.

Responsible Agencies: CDD (Building Division)

Timeframe: Ongoing

- **Progress**: County supports rehabilitation projects. No demolition of housing units occurred during cycle.
- Adjustments: County will encourage rehabilitation of units over demolition when practical and feasible.

e. EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES

- Goal Promote equal housing opportunities for all persons.
- Policy 1 Ensure that information on fair housing laws is easily available.
- Policy 2 Ensure that complaints about housing discrimination are addressed promptly and appropriately.
- Program 5:1 Disseminate and maintain fair housing information and education materials throughout the county and ensure public awareness of fair housing laws and processes. Materials will be distributed in a variety of public locations including government centers, libraries, post offices, shopping areas and websites.

Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing **Progress**: Community Development provides information on the County website and at the permit counter and distributes information at RPACs. **Adjustments**: Program will continue.

Program 5:2 Refer persons with complaints of housing discrimination to appropriate online resources including information/links hosted on the Housing Authority web-site. Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing
 Progress: No complaints received during cycle.
 Adjustments: Program will continue.

f. PRESERVING UNITS AT RISK OF CONVERSION TO MARKET RATE USES

- Goal Preserve development reserved for low-income and/or employee housing uses at risk of conversion to market rates.
- Policy 1 Ensure that units designated for low-income and/or employee housing uses remain restricted to those uses.
- Policy 2 Ensure that units generally considered affordable (i.e., mobile homes) remain as residential uses.
- Policy 3 Ensure that units participating in state or federal rental assistance or subsidy programs remain in those programs to retain affordability.

 Program 6:1 Legally restrict units intended for low-income and/or employee housing uses to those uses, report on legal status/policies of agency owned housing units. Responsible Agencies: BOS, State/Federal Agencies/CDD Timeframe: Ongoing
 Progress: No restricted units added during cycle.
 Adjustments: County sold units should have deed restriction mechanism.

Program 6:2 Continue to enforce regulations in the Mono County General Plan concerning the conversion of residential facilities or mobile-home spaces in a mobile-home park to other uses. Responsible Agencies: CDD Timeframe: Ongoing Progress: No related projects during cycle. Adjustments: Programs will continue.

Program 6:3 Provide incentives for property owners to participate in state or federally funded rental assistance or subsidy programs. These incentives may include fee reductions, administrative (grant) assistance, and streamlined permit processing for rehabilitations. Responsible Agencies: BOS, CDD Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: No incentives provided during cycle.

Adjustments: Continue to explore incentives as they become available.

Program 6:4 Monitor the conversion of permanent housing or long-term rental housing into transient rentals, particularly within the Transient Rental Overlay Districts. Responsible Agencies: CDD

T' C C C

Timeframe: Ongoing

Progress: Conversion of units recorded during short-term rental permitting process. **Adjustments**: Continue to monitor. Short-term rentals are heavily regulated and rental history (i.e. if rented long-term in the past) is considered during approval process. Remove specific monitoring of Transient Rental Overlay Districts.